## HA TINH PROVINCIAL PEOPLE'S COMMITTEE

HA TINH PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT OF CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT WORKS FOR AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

# RESETTLEMENT ACTION PLAN

DAM REHABILITATION AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (WB8) - HA TINH SUBPROJECT

## HA TINH, JULY 2018

## HA TINH PROVINCIAL PEOPLE'S COMMITTEE

HA TINH PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT OF CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT WORKS FOR AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

# RESETTLEMENT ACTION PLAN

# DAM REHABILITATION AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (WB8) - HA TINH SUBPROJECT

PROJECT OWNER

**CONSULTANT** 

## **JULY 2018**

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABI	BRE	VIATIONS	8
GL	OSS	ARY	9
1. P	PROJ	IECT DESCRIPTION (FOR PARENT PROJECT DESCRIPTION SEE	
			14
2. P	OTI	ENTIAL IMPACTS	16
2	2.1.	Mitigation Measures of Land Acquisition and Resettlement	16
2	2.2.	Scope of Land Acquisition and Resettlement (LAR)	
2	2.3.	Related Projects	24
3. S	OCI	O-ECONOMIC INFORMATION	25
3	3.1.	Survey Approaches and Methodologies	25
3	3.2.	Results of Socio-Economic Survey of Affected Households in the Project Area	
4. P	PRIN	CIPLES AND POLICIES FOR COMPENSATION, ASSISTANCE AND	
R	RESE	CTTLEMENT	31
5. E	ELIG	IBILITY CRITERIA AND ENTITLEMENTS	<b>37</b>
5	5.1.	Affected people (AP)	37
5	5.2.	Identification of Vulnerable Groups or Households	
	5.3.	Eligibility	
_	5.4.	Entitlements	
	5.5.	New HHs after the cut-off date	
		LIHOOD RESTORATION PROGRAM	
_	5.1.	Income Restoration and Assistance Policies	
	5.2.	Participating Households	
	5.3. 5.4.	Demand analysis	
	5.4. 5.5.	Proposed Income Restoration Program	
_		IC CONSULTATION AND INFORMATION DISCLOSURE	
	7.1. 7.2.	Objectives of Public Consultation and Information Disclosure	
	.2. 7.3.	Public Consultation	
	.3. 7.4.	Public Consultation during the Preparation Phase	
	7.5.	Consultation during project implementation	
7	7.6.	Public consultation	
	7.7.	Community meetings	
	7.8.	Information disclosure	
<b>8. G</b>	GRIE	VANCES AND REDRESS MECHANISM	<b>56</b>
	3.1.	Responsibilities	56
8	3.2.	Grievance Redress Mechanism	56
9. I	MPL	EMENTION ARRANGEMENT	<b>58</b>
9	<b>)</b> .1.	Institutional Framework	
9	9.2.	Responsibilities of relevant agencies	58
10.	IMF	PLEMENTATION SCHEDULE	<b>62</b>
1	0.1.	Main activities	62
1	0.2.	Implementation Schedule	62
11.	MO	NITORING AND EVALUATION	64

11.1.	Monitoring	64
11.2.	Internal Monitoring	64
11.3.	Independent Monitoring	65
12. CO	ST ESTIMATES	67
12.1.	Funding sources	67
	Pricing and Compensation for Affected Assets	
	Cost Estimate	
ANNEX	ES	69
Anne	x 1: Replacement Cost Survey	69
Anne	x 2: Minutes of Public Consultation at project area	69
Anne	x 3: Socio-economic Survey for affected households	69
Anne	x 4: Some Pictures of Consultation Meetings	69
Anne	x 5: Public information Booklet	69

## LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.1. Subproject's Items	. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Table 2.1: Number of Affected Households	17
Table 2.2: Summary of Land Acquistion Impact Level	19
Table 2.3: Summary of Affected Residential Land	
Table 2.4: Summary about Affected Agricultural production l	and20
Table 2.5: Summary about Affected Aquaculture Land	21
Table 2.6: Summary about number of households affected with	th structures21
Table 2.7: Summary of affected trees and crops	
Table 3.1: Socio-Economic Survey Scope	26
Table 3.2: Education level of household heads	27
Table 3.3: Occupation of household heads by subproject item	s27
Table 3.4: Average income	
Table 3.5: Household Equipment	29
Table 3.6: Vulnerable affected households in subproject areas	29
Table 4.1: Matrix of Entitlements	32
Table 6.1: AH's demand on participation in income restoration	n program39
Table 6.2: Income Restoration Program for AHs	42
Table 6.3: Cost estimate for Income Restoration Program for	AHs43
Table 7.1: Public Consultation on Land Acquisition and Rese	ttlement46
Table 7.2: Results of public consultation meetings with priori	
Subproject	48
Table 10.1: Implementation Schedule	62
Table 12.1: Cost estimate for compensation for affected items	

## **CURRENCY EQUIPVALENT**

(As of 05/05/2018)

Unit – Dong (VND) \$1.00 = 22,700 VND

#### **ABBREVIATIONS**

AH Affected Households
PMU Project Management Unit
PC People's Committee

CRC Compensation and Resettlement Council

DMS Detailed Measurement Survey

DRASIP Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project (WB 8)

GoV Government of Vietnam

IDA International Development Agency
IMA Independent Monitoring Agency

IOL Inventory of Loss

LIP Livelihood Improvement Plan

MOLISA Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs

OP Operation Policy

PDO Project Development Objectives RPF Resettlement Policy Framework

RAP Resettlement Action Plan RCS Replacement cost survey

ROW Right of Way

SES Socio-Economic Survey

EM Ethnic Minority

LURC Land Use Right Certificate

WB World Bank

ODA Official Development Assistance
IMC Independent Monitoring Consultant

USD US Dollar VND Vietnam Dong

#### **GLOSSARY**

Project impacts

Any impacts relating directly to land acquisition or limit using legal areas or protected areas.

Affected persons

Any person who, as a result of the implementation of a project, loses the right to own, use, or otherwise benefit from a built structure, land (residential, agricultural, or pasture), annual or perennial crops and trees, or any other fixed or moveable asset, either in full or in part, permanently or temporarily.

Cut-off-date

Is the date when the PPC issues the Notification of Land acquisition for the relevant project (Article 67.1 of Land Law 2013) before implementation of detailed measurement survey. A census survey will be done before the cut-off date is announced to establish a list of potential affected households.

Eligibility

Any person who used the land affected by the project and listed before the cut-off-date: (i) with formal legal right to land; (ii) without formal legal right to land but have a claim to such land or assets recognized under the laws of the country(iii) without recognizable legal right or claim to the land they are occupying.

Replacement cost

For agricultural land, the replacement cost is the pre-project or predisplacement, whichever is higher, market value of land of equal productive potential or use located in the vicinity of the affected land, plus the cost of preparing the land to levels similar to those of the affected land, plus the cost of any registration and transfer taxes.

For land in urban areas, it is the pre-displacement market value of land of equal size and use, with similar or improved public infrastructure facilities and services and located in the vicinity of the affected land, plus the cost of any registration and transfer taxes.

For houses and other structures, it is the market cost of the materials to build a replacement structure with an area and quality similar to or better than those of the affected structure, plus the cost of transporting building materials into the construction site, plus the cost of any labor and contractors' fees, plus the cost of any registration and transfer taxes. In determining the replacement cost, depreciation of the asset and the value of salvage materials are not taken into account, nor is the value of benefits to be derived from the project deducted from the valuation of an affected asset.

Resettlement

Covers all direct economic and social losses resulting from land taking and restriction of access, together with the consequent compensatory and remedial measures. Resettlement is not restricted to its usual meaning-physical relocation. Resettlement can, depending on the case, include (i) acquisition of land and physical structures on the land, including businesses; (ii) physical relocation; and (iii) economic rehabilitation of affected persons (APs), to improve (or at least restore) incomes and living standards.

IAC | 9

Entitlements

Include compensation and assistance for APs based on the type and extent of damage.

Inventory Losses (IOL)

of Is process of accounting for physical assets and income affected by project

Socio -Economic Baseline Survey (BLS) A socio-economic baseline survey of households, businesses, or other project-affectd parties needed to: identify and accureately compensate or mitigate losses, assess impacts on household economy, and differentiate affected parties by level of impact.

Vulnerable groups

People who by virtue of gender, ethnicity, age, physical or mental disability, economic disadvantage, or social status may be more adversely affected by resettlement than others and who may be limited in their ability to claim or take advantage of resettlement assistance and related development benefits, including: (i) women headed household (single, widow, disabled husband) with dependents, (ii) disabled (loss of working ability), the elderly alone, (iii) poor people according to the criteria issued by the MOLISA, (iv) the landless, and (v) ethnic minority people.

Livelihood

Economic activities and income streams, usually involving selfemployment and or wage employment by using one's endowments (both human and material) to generate adequate resources for meeting the requirements of the self and household on a sustainable basis.

Income (livelihood) restoration

Re-establishment of sources of income and livelihoods of the affected households.

Stakeholders

Any and all individuals, groups, organizations, and institutions interested in and potentially affected by a project or having the ability to influence a project

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

## **Project Introduction**

1. This Ressettlement Action Plan (RAP) is prepared for the Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project (DRaSIP), Ha Tinh subproject (hereinafter referred to as the Subproject) funded by the World Bank (WB). The RAP is prepared based on the project's resettlement framework, inventory of loss, public conssultation carried out in March 2018. The report consists of the subproject's impacts on land acquistion; eligible criteria and conditions of compensation for land and affected assets; implementation arrangement, implementation plan, cost estimate, monitoring and assessment, consultation, participation and grievance redress mechanism.

## Objectives of the RAP

- 2. The RAP is prepared based on Resettlement Policy Framework (RPF) approved by the Prime Minister and cleared by the WB before the time of Agreement negotiation to ensure harmony between the World Bank's OP/BP 4.12 and the Vietnam's laws and regulations on compensation, assistance and resettlement. The RAP's objectives are:
  - (a) Involuntary resettlement should be avoided where feasible or minimized by all viable alternative technical designs.
  - (b) Wherever involuntary resettlement is unavoidable, resettlement activities should be conceived of and executed as sustainable development programs, providing sufficient investment sources to enable affected persons to share project's benefits; Directly or indirectly affected persons must be consulted and participated in the process of planning and implementing resettlement programs.
  - (c) Affected Persons should be assisted in efforts to improve their livelihoods and living standards or at least to restore them, in real terms, to pre-project levels or to levels prevailing prior to the beginning of project implementation, whichever is higher.
- 3. All projects affected persons (PAPs) who have assets or reside in the project area before the cut-off date are entitled to compensation for their losses. Those who have lost their income and/or livelihoods will be eligible for livelihood rehabilitation assistance based on the criteria of eligibility defined by the project in consultation with the PAPs. If, by the end of the project, livelihoods have been shown not to be restored to pre-project levels, additional measures will be provided. This RAP will provide guidelines for compensation and land acquisition activities during subproject implementation that involved in land acquisition, compensation and resettlement regardless of financial sources.

## Scope and Impacts of Land acquisition

- 4. Ha Tinh subproject will affect 97 HHs, including (i) 88 individual affected households (in which 67 HHs are directly affected by land acquisition and 21 HHs are affected by loss of crops and trees on land managed by commune/ward PC), and (ii) 9 commune/ward PCs. The subproject implementation will permanently acquire total area of 71,917 m² land, including 1,587 m² residential land, 6,263 m² agricultural production land, 37,081 m² productive forest land, 3,146 m² aquaculture land, and 23,840 m² special-used, corridor, transport lands. During the construction, the subproject will temporarily affect 18,500 m² public land managed by ward/commune PCs temporary used for construction purposes.
- 5. Out of 97 hhs affected with land and assets thereon, there are 10 hhs affected with residential land, 12 hhs affected with agricultural production land (annual crop land) in which

2 hhs severely affected by loss of 20% or more, 35 hhs affected with productive forest land, 10 hhs affected with aquaculture land, 21 hhs affected by loss of crops and trees cultivating on rented land from commune/ward PC, and 9 commune PCs. There are 15 vulnerable households, in which there are 7 poor households, 2 policy households, 1 single elderly households and 5 female headed households with dependents. There is no household in need of relocation.

### **Mitigation Measures**

6. In the process of Project Design, the Ha Tinh Project Management Unit of Construction Investment Works for Agriculture and Rural Development (PMU) has closely worked with the Project preparation Consultant and resettlement specialists to avoid or mitigate land acquisition area. Negative impact mitigation measures of the project are carried out through design options which aim to promote investment effectiveness and mitigate land acquisition area. The temporary impact mitigation measures during construction phase are also studied and proposed to avoid and/or minimize these impacts in project implementation.

## **Policy Framework and Entitlements**

7. The entitlements for affected households of Ha Tinh sub-project will be complied with WB's policy on involuntary resettlement (OP/BP 4.12) and the laws, regulations of the GoV and the Resettlement Policy Framework (RPF) which has been agreed between the Government of Vietnam and the World Bank. The basic principles applied for preparation of this Resettlement Plan are that all AHs of the subproject will be compensated at replacement cost and assisted with restoration measures to help them improve or at least maintain the living conditions as before the project.

## **Livelihood Restoration Program**

8. Livelihood restoration program is an important activity of the compensation, assistance and resettlement plan. In this project, a vocational training and employment program will be provided by the Employment Service Center under Ha Tinh Department of Labor - Invalids and Social Affairs, helping AHs to restore their livelihoods and ensure their living standards at least equal to or better than the pre-project level. In addition, at the AH's demands, they will get a loan from the Social Policy Bank of Ha Tinh Province for household economic development with preferential policies and specific instructions and/ or free costs of procedures and related papers.

#### **Implementation Arrangements**

9. The compensation, assistance and resettlement of the subproject will be subject to the management and supervision of Ha Tinh PMU and implemented by the District/City Land Fund Development Center (LFDC)/ the District/City Compensation and Resettlement Committee (CRC). During the implementation process, there should have the close coordination between the members of the Compensation and Resettlement Councils. In the implementation process, these organizations should have close coordination with the relevant authorities, the authorities at wards/communes level and the communities in the project area to ensure that the compensation, assistance and resettlement activities are performed openly, transparently, at time-bound and in compliance with the approved RAP.

## **Consultation and Participation**

10. The RAP is prepared with the close coordination of the local authorities, representative of local community and affected people. Local authorities at the wards, communes and representatives of the affected households were involved in the consultations through the various forms and channels, including meetings and public consultations,

questionnaire-based survey for almost of households in the project area. Information collected during the consultation will serve as a basis for preparing resettlement policy of the project, including compensation plan and income restoration program.

## **Monitoring and Evaluation**

- 11. This RAP will be implemented under the supervision of Ha Tinh PMU. At the same time, CPO/CPMU under MARD will also recruit an independent monitoring agency/individual for monitoring the implementation of the RAP.
- 12. Upon completing the project, the independent monitoring agency (IMA) will also evaluate to determine whether the objectives of the resettlement policy have achieved. In case it is found that these objectives are not achieved; Ha Tinh PMU will propose the follow-up measures as the basis for the World Bank to continue the monitoring until WB finds it suitable.

#### **Grievances and Redress Mechanism**

13. The Project will establish a Grievance Redress Board to support in resolving and monitoring the processes related to grievances, complaints and inquiries as a result of the project intervention. The mechanism established by the project aims to allow affected persons (APs) to lodge their complaints and receive the resolutions under the project's resettlement policy framework (RPF) and the project's operational guidelines. The Ha Tinh PMU's officers in charge of resettlement will also work directly with AHs as an official first step of resolving complaints prior to coming up with the Grievance Redress Board. The AHs will be fully informed of the information of grievance redress mechanism via the appropriate measures.

#### **Cost Estimate**

- 14. Cost estimate for implementing this RAP is VND **2,275,354,800** (equivalent to US\$ **100,235.89** with exchange rate: 22,700 VND = 1 USD). This budget includes costs of compensation/ assistance for land, structures, assets affected by project, the income restoration program, transitional assistance, cost of monitoring and evaluation, cost of implementation management and contingency.
- 15. Estimated cost for the site clearance will be updated according to the detailed design and by the time of land acquisition based on the results of the independent valuation agency.
- 16. All above mentiond costs will come from counterpart fund.

## 1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION (FOR PARENT PROJECT DESCRIPTION SEE RPF)

## **❖** Component 1: Dam Safety Rehabilitation (USD 385 million)

- 1. This component will be implemented through physical rehabilitation of existing infrastructure. The implementation includes two different approaches required for the rehabilitation of small community-managed and large dams. The difference between the two approaches relates not only to the types of works and the regulatory framework involved, but also the institutional and implementation arrangements required to undertake such works and ensure their sustainable operations and maintenance.
- 2. The activities include: (i) detailed design, safeguards policies documents, monitoring and quality control of rehabilitation works and associated safeguards compliance for prioritized dams and associated infrastructure; (ii) rehabilitation works, including civil works, hydro-mechanical works and installation of hydrological and safety monitoring equipment and devices; (iii) preparation of Operation and Maintenance Plans, and Emergency Preparedness Plans; (iv) approval of check list on standards of dam management by the community.

## 1.1. The Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project – Ha Tinh Subproject

- 3. According to the master plan on irrigation system by 2020, on vision to 2030 of Ha Tinh Province, by 2020 the water demand for agricultural, industrial production, services, domestic use and electricity generation is 3,628 billion m3/year, and it is predicted to be 4,354 billion m3/year in 2030. Up to now, the province has constructed 345 lakes and reservoirs, 57 weirs, 381 pump stations, 6,920km of canals. Meanwhile, water demand for socio-economic development is increasing, especially for industrial and service sector. For example, in Vung Ang Industrial Park, under the planning toward 2020, its water demand is 1,005,000m<sup>3</sup>/day.
- 4. Expectedly, the rehabilitation and safety improvement of dams under the Ha Tinh Subproject will contribute to modernization of focal works, water supply in order to ensure safety of reservoirs, works and infrastructure for Vung Ang IP and people in downstream areas of 8 dams/reservoirs: Dap Buom, Khe Co, Khe Nhay, Khe De, Da Den, Loi Dong, Nuoc Xanh, Ba Khe in Ky Anh, Huong Son, Vu Quang, Thach Ha districts, Ha Tinh province. Detail description of the proposed works will be presented in the following section.

## 1.2. Detailed description of sub-project

5. The subproject will finance works on 8 resevoirs. 08 items of the component 1: Dam Safety Rehabilitation will be prioritized. Therefore, the RAP will be prepared for the implementation of proposed subproject's items; including:

No	WORKS	WARDS/CO MMUNES	DISTRIC T	SCALE				
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Trinh, Ky Thinh	Ky Anh	Dam surface: Enhance and expand dam surface to B = 5.0m, Length L = 825m, Water intake: Dimension D = 0.4m, length L = 40m Discharge spillway: Width B = 30m, Management, rescue road: Withd B = 3.5m; L = 200m Management house: New construction of management house, area: 69 m2				

Table 1.1: Subproject's Items

No	WORKS	WARDS/CO MMUNES	DISTRIC T	SCALE
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	Ky Anh	Dam surface: Enhance and expand dam surface toB = 5.0m; L = 1,752.8m  Water intake: Length L = 50m  Discharge spillway: Newly construct spillway on existing base which B = 34m  Management road: B = 3.5m, L = 700m  Road: New construction of road L = 604.66, B = 4.0m
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ку Вас	Ky Anh	Dam surface: Enhance of dam crest +20.1m, expand B = 5.0m, L = 805m  Water intake: Intake 1, D = 0.04m, L = 32m; Intake 2: D = 0.60m, L = 36.3m  Discharge spillway: Expand spillway B = 35m
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	Vu Quang	Dam surface: Enhance dam crest +20.0m, Expand B = $5.0m$ , L = $88$ Water intake: D = $0.40m$ , L = $47m$ Diversion canal behind the intake: New construction of canal L = $224m$ Discharge spillway: Expand B = $35m$ , Designed spillway discharge $Q_{design} = 156.68m3/s$ Construction and management road: B = $3.5m$ ; L $332.9m$
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	Huong Son	Dam surface: Enhance the dam surface to +43.6m; L = 91m, Sub dam 1 L = 271m, Sub dam 2 L = 95m, Sub dam 3 L = 55m  Water intake: Use existing intake  Discharge spillway: Expand B = 25m, designed capacity Qdesign = 66.27m3/s  Rescue road: B = 3.5m, L = 2,371.7
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	Huong Son	Dam surface: Enhance dam surface to $+24.0m$ , L $=107m$ Water intake: New construction of intake with a distance of 4.1m from existing intake, L= 30m, $Q_{design}=0.063m3/s$ Discharge spillway: Upgrade and expand to B = $25m$ , Altitude of spillway $+22.29m$ , Designed capacity $Q_{design}=18.57m3/s$
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	Huong Son	Dam surface: Enhance dam surface to $+29.60m$ , Expand B = 5,0m, Main dam L = 240m, Sub dam L = 242 Water intake: Construct new intake to the right shoulder of main dam L = 68m, Designed capacity $Q_{design} = 0.23m3/s$ Rescue road: Expand and concrete B = 3.5m, L = 1,960
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	Thach Ha	Dam surface: Enhance the dam crest to $+27.7m$ , Expand B = $5.0m$ , L = $153m$ Water intake: New construction of intake, L = $50m$ , Discharge spillway: Construction of new spillway, expand spillway B = $30m$ , Designed capacity $Q_{designed} = 28.2m3/s$

No	WORKS	WARDS/CO MMUNES	DISTRIC T	SCALE
				Rescue/management road: Upgrade of rescue road B = 3.5m, L = 544m

## 2. POTENTIAL IMPACTS

## 2.1. Mitigation Measures of Land Acquisition and Resettlement

## 2.1.1. Objectives

6. The first principle in the WB's OP/BP 4.12 requirement is to avoid or minimize impacts of land acquisition and resettlement. Wherever involuntary resettlement is unavoidable, adequate compensation for affected households should be applied.

## 2.1.2. Mitigation measures of negative impacts

- 7. During the project basic design process, the Ha Tinh PMU has worked closely with the project preparation consultant and resettlement specialists to avoid or minimize magnitude of land acquisition and to ensure that the scope of resettlement impact is mitigated in all subproject items.
- 8. So as to mitigate the project impacts of land acquisition and resettlement, on both directly or indirectly affected households, mitigation measures have been carried out as follows:
  - The Ha Tinh PMU has coordinated with the technical design consultants of the project to carry out survey and study on the position and scope of each works item in order to propose the best design options with the aim of minimizing level of land acquisition impacts on households. Technical options for reducing design scales, width of embankments, route alignments or intersections have been analyzed and the optimal design option has been selected to minimize impacts on local households. The majority of acquired land is roads, irrigation, agricultural land and productive forest land.
  - During project preparation and the RAP preparation as well, many public consultations have been organized by the Ha Tinh PMU and the resettlement consultant in the project area to publicize (i) project information and (ii) expected impacts, as well as land acquisition, compensation and resettlement measures, etc. This will provide households with project location and benefits as well as potential affects for impact mitigation. Many issues were raised and discussed in those consultations, such as project assistance and compensation policies, income restoration programs for severely affected households in order to figure out corrective measures. All local people are highly supportive of the project and look forward to its implementation.
  - To minimize impacts on households having agricultural land during the construction phase, resettlement consultants has worked with the local authorities and those households to propose appropriate mitigation measures to each area. Accordingly, a number of mitigation measures during the construction process will be applied, e.g carrying out successive construction methods.
  - As agreed during consultation, construction schedule will be publicly announced according to regulations to local authorities and affected households so that AHs can arrange suitable farming plans.

- The resettlement consulting firm has also organized meetings with the design consulting units of the project to discuss about location of local works, public works and the selection of design solutions in order to avoid/minimize negative impacts on local people, etc. At the same time, criteria for negative impact mitigation in the construction process have been developed such as establishment of occupational safety plans (in case construction is close to residential areas), arrangement of suitable materials and tools (signboards, partitions with residential areas, etc.), time, and construction schedule and so on to minimize temporary impacts during the construction process as well as when the project puts into operation.
- 9. Despite application of many mitigation measures as described above, impacts of land acquisition and site clearance during project construction are inevitable. The impact scope and magnitude of the Ha Tinh subproject province are shown in section 3.2 below:

## 2.2. Scope of Land Acquisition and Resettlement (LAR)

## 2.2.1. Number of households affected by the subproject

- 10. According to the IOL results, the implementation of the subproject works will affect 97 households. Of which, (i) 88 hhs affected by residential land and agricultural land (production forest land, aquacultural land and annual crop land, and trees and crops on land, and (ii) other 9 CPCs are also affected by loss of public land. In which:
  - 10 Residential land-affected households, in which, there is no relocated household;
  - 12 Agricultural production land-affected households (annual crop land), of which, there are 02 serverely affected households by loss of 20% or more of their agricultural land;
  - 35 Productive forestry land-affected households;
  - 10 Aquacultural land-affected households;
  - 21 Households with their crops on CPC's land are affected; and
  - 9 CPCs affected with public land.
- 11. IOL results show that out of 97 hhs, there are 15 vulnerable hhs (of which 07 poor hhs, 02 policy hhs, 1 single elderly hh, 5 female headed hhs with dependents); no household engaged in business, no EM household. Number of AHs in each project's work is presented in table below:

Table 2 .1: Number of Affected Households

			Af	No. of HH					
Works	Communes	Residential land (HH)	Producti ve forest land <sup>1</sup> (HH)	land (Annu	al production al crop land) IH)	Aquac ultu- ral land (HH)	affected with trees on land managed by PC (HH)	Vulne rable house holds	No. of affect ed CPCs (HH)
				Marginaly AHs <sup>2</sup>	Severely AHs <sup>3</sup>				
Loi Dong	Ky Trinh	1	5	-	ı	-	2	-	1
Reservoir	Ky Thinh	7	1	2	-	2	2	3	1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This is production forestry land assigned by CPCs to households for cultivation and management (leased land)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Serverely AHs are those whose agriculture land is lost by 20% or more (10% or more for vulnerable households)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Marginally AHs are those whose Agricultural land is lost under 20% (10% or more for vulnerable households);

			Af	ffected Land A	rea		No. of HH		
Works	Communes	Residential land (HH)	Producti ve forest land <sup>1</sup> (HH)	land (Annu	al production al crop land) IH)	Aquac ultu- ral land (HH)	affected with trees on land managed by PC (HH)	Vulne rable house holds	No. of affect ed CPCs (HH)
				Marginaly AHs <sup>2</sup>	Severely AHs <sup>3</sup>				
Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-	2	-	-		1	2	1
Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	-	3	4	1	3	1	4	1
Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	1	3	-	1	-	2	2	1
Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	-	11	1	1	2	6	2	1
Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	-	2	2	1	2	2	1	1
Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	1	5	1	-	-	3	1	1
Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	3	-	-	1	2	1	1
Total		10	35	10	2	10	21	15	9

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.2. Impact of land acquisition of the project

- 12. Implementation of the subproject's items will require permanent acquisition of **71,917m²** land from 67 households and 9 ward/commune PCs, in which:
  - Affected agricultural production land (annual crop land): **6,263** m<sup>2</sup>
  - Affected residential land: **1,587** m<sup>2</sup>
  - Affected public land: **23,840** m<sup>2</sup> of land managed by 9 ward/town PCs, including special-used land, river/stream land, dyke corridor land.
  - Affected productive forest land: **37,081** m<sup>2</sup>
  - Affected aquaculture area:  $3,146 \text{ m}^2$
- 13. In addition, the subproject will temporarily affect **18,500** m<sup>2</sup> of public land managed by CPCs that will be used temporarily for construction, for example as depots, storage sites, worker camps and facilities such as parking lot, material stockpile, and material transportation during construction.
- 14. The subproject's items will affect 21 HHs' fruit plants and plant for timber such as willow, melaleuca, eucalyptus, chinaberry, Bead tree, Orange, Tangerine cultivated on land of PCs. Summary of Impact magnitude by each item is shown below:

Table 2.2: Summary of Land Acquistion Impact Level

			Permanently Affected area									Total permanently affected area		Area of	
No.	Works	Communes	Communes Residential land					Agricultural production land (annual crop land)		Public land		cultural ind	(m <sup>2</sup> )	нн	temporari ly affected land (m2)
			$(\mathbf{m}^2)$	НН	$(\mathbf{m}^2)$	нн	( <b>m</b> <sup>2</sup> )	нн	$(m^2)$	нн	(m <sup>2</sup> )	нн			
	1 . D D .	Ky Trinh	176	1	2,213	5	-	-	2,213	2	-	1	4,602	6	2,000
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	782	7	2,527	1	781	2	4,632	3	991	2	9,713	12	2,000
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-	-	4,956	2	-	-	-		-		4,956	2	2,000
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	-	-	3,614	3	3,438	5	237,9	1	678	3	7,730	11	2,000
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	411	1	1,087	3	-	-	2,859	2	-	ı	4,357	4	2,000
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	-	-	12,461	11	344	1			767	2	13,572	14	2,000
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	-	-	1,890	2	1,189	3	7,185	8	235	2	10,499	7	2,500
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	218	1	4,699	5	511	1	5,877	3	-	1	11,305	7	2,000
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	-	3,634	3	0	0	1,074	2	475	1	5,183	4	2,000
	Total		1,587	10	37,081	35	6,263	12	23,840	21	3,146	10	71,917	67	18,500

(Sources: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3. Inventory of Loss

## 2.2.3.1. Impacts on residential acquistion

15. 10 HHs will be permanently affected with partial residential land and some fixed assets. Impact magnitude for each item is indicated in the following table:

Table 2 .3: Summary of Affected Residential Land

No.	Works	Communes	No. AHs Partially	Total affected area
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Trinh	1	176
1	Loi Dolig Reservoir	Ky Thinh	7	782
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-	-
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	-	-
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	1	411
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le		
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien		
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	1	218
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	-
	Total		10	1,587

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3.2. Impacts on Agricultural production land (annual crop land)

- 16. Implementation of the subproject's items will affect 12 households with the affected area of 6,263 m<sup>2</sup> mainly used for rice and annual crops.
- 17. IOL data result indicates that the subproject affected houhseholds are mainly engaged in agricultural production and their income depends mostly on agriculture (paddy and annual crops production activities) so as the determination of severity of impact is based on the scale of acquisition of the productive agricultural land. Thus, out of 12 hhs, there are 02 hhs severely affected by loss of 20% or more of their agricultural land. Impact magnitude for each item is indicated in the following table:

Table 2 .4: Summary about Affected Agricultural production land

			Number of Agricultur	Total	
No.	Works	Communes	< 20%	20% or more	affected agricultural area
1	Lai Dana Basamain	Ky Trinh	-	-	-
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	2	-	781
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-	-	-
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	4	1	3,438
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	-	-	-
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	1	-	344
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	2	1	1,189
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	1	-	511
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	-	-
	Total		10	2	6,263

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3.3. Impacts on productive forest land

18. Implementation of the subproject's items will affect 37,081 m<sup>2</sup> of productive forest land of 35 households planting Melaleuca, Eucalyptus, Acacia, Willow etc. As IOL result, the portion of affected land is marginal, as compared with their total land holding.

## 2.2.3.4. Impacts on Aquaculture Land

19. 8 subproject items will affect 3,146 m<sup>2</sup> of aquaculture land of 10 households. Impact magnitude for each item is indicated in the following table:

Table 2.5: Summary about Affected Aquaculture Land

No/	Works	Communes	Households affected with aquaculture area			
2 1 0 7	.,		$(m^2)$	Number		
1	Lai Dana Basamain	Ky Trinh	-	-		
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	991	2		
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-			
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	678	3		
4	Dam Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	-	-		
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	767	2		
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	235	2		
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	-	-		
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	475	1		
	Total		3,146	10		

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3.5. Impacts on Structures

20. In the basic design phase, optimal options have been selected to mitigate and minimize impacts by land acquisition on local households. However, the impacts from land acquisition and site clearance are unavoidable, especially impacts on secondary structures. IOL result shows that there are 10 hhs partially affected with structures. No household affected with a house that is required to be relocated, As required, compensation rate for structures will be the replacement rate, including allowances for repairing structures for AHs.

*Table 2 .6: Summary about number of households affected with structures* 

			NI C	Affected items				
No.	Works	Communes	No. of HHs affected with structures	Fence (m <sup>2</sup> )	Yard (m²)	Breeding facilities (m <sup>2</sup> )		
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Trinh	1	-	=	160		
1		Ky Thinh	7	234	121	70		
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	-	-	-	-		
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	-	-	-	-		
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	1	-	43	157		
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	-	-	-	-		
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	-	-	-	-		
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	1	-	21	89		
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	-	-	-		
9	Total		10	234	185	476		

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3.6. Impacts on Crops and Trees

- 21. According to the preliminary inventory results, trees and crops of 88 households will be affected by the project. Of which, 67 households are directly affected with trees and crops on their land acquired and 21 households are affected with trees and crops cultivated on land managed by CPCs.
- 22. Totally, 1,649 fruit trees, 8,016 timber trees and about 2,702 m<sup>2</sup> of cash crops (including beans, peanuts, vegetables) will be affected by project's items. Table below summarizes the number of trees and crops affected by the subproject:

Table 2 .7: Summary of affected trees and crops

		Number		Affected w	rith timbe (Tree)	er trees		Crops Fruit trees (Tree)			Industrial trees		
Items	Wards/ Communes	of AHs	Melaleuca >15 cm	Eucalyp- tus	Acacia	Willow	Bead tree	Bean, Pea- nut, potato	Orange	Tanger- ine	Unners	Tea tree	
Lai Dana Baranaia	Ky Trinh	8	270	150	110	270	17	-	-	-	-	-	-
Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	14	110	170	-	34	18	230	-	-	-	-	-
Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	3	410	36	67	210	45	200	-	ľ	-	-,	-
Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	12	170	125	657	45	29	780	-	-	-	-	-
Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	6	550	-	67	-	12	-	150	-	-	-	50
Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	20	890	78	367	78	17	738	380	-	2	1	-
Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	9	389	3	198	-	1	544	-	-	-	-	-
Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	10	1200	89	76	110		210	600	120	6	-	340
Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	6	341	270	310	-	27	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total		88	4,330	921	1,852	747	166	2,702	1,130	120	8	1	390

(Source: IOL Survey, March 2018)

## 2.2.3.7. Impacts on public land

23. In addition to impacts on land, assets owned by households, subproject's works also affects 23,840 m<sup>2</sup> of public land under management of 09 CPCs, including special-used land, banks of stream, river, dam corridor land and roads. For acquired public land area, the compensation will be at 70% of agricultural land price at the same kind in the land price table under Ha Tinh PPC's current regulations.

## 2.2.3.8. Temporary Impacts during Construction

- 24. The preliminary inventory showed that subproject's works will temporarily affect 18,500 m<sup>2</sup> of public land area managed by 09 commune/wards. This land is mainly used for material gathering, bypass, and material transportation during construction. Compensation, assistance for temporarily affected land will be paid based on affected level and construction duration.
- 25. During construction phase, the Project Owner will inform local authorities and water users of water cutoff (e.g cutoff time for construction) so that local people can actively set their production plan. At the same time, temporary dyke should be built for water diversion so that no household will be affected by water outage during construction. In case the mitigation is not viable, these hhs will be provided with assistance/allowance as set forth in approved RPF.

## 2.3. Related Projects

26. Screening results showed that there is no project linked or associated with the Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project - Ha Tinh Subproject.

#### 3. SOCIO-ECONOMIC INFORMATION

## 3.1. Survey Approaches and Methodologies

## **\*** Approaches

27. The participatory approach is used in preparing the Resettlement Action Plan. Accordingly, affected people were engaged in preparatory phase of this resettlement plan by mean of in-depth interviews, focus group discussions, and observation. The representatives of Ha Tinh PMU and Ward/Commune PCs were also invited.

## Methodologies

28. The RAP is applied to subproject's items involved in land acquisition and site clearance. Methodologies applied in the process of RAP preparation include:

## Desk review

29. The Consultant collected, reviewed, studied and analyzed/assessed the documents relating to compensation, assistance and resettlement of the Project. Those documents were collected at Ha Tinh PMU, PCs of project wards/communes, including: (i) Project documents (Statement and Design Drawings of subproject items; Resettlement Policy Framework, etc.); (ii) Cadastral maps, copies of maps and Socio-economic reports provided by CPCs; (iii) relevant policies of the World Bank, the GoV and Ha Tinh PPC with aim to (1) find out procedures, regulations proposed and approved from the project documents, (2) find out technical methods proposed for each Project component; (3) review socio – economic reports of localities, (4) propose mitigation measures and guidelines for follow-up actions.

## Qualitative research method

- Consultation and discussion with various stakeholders, including the implementation agencies, social organizations, representatives of leaders of local authorities through consultation meetings, in-depth interviews and group discussions. Working minutes is in Annex 02.
- Focus group discussions, in-depth interviews with affected households, such as severely affected households, relocated households and vulnerable households. Working minutes is in Annex 02.
- Field survey to the project area to determine the potential impacts on local residents during the project implementation.

## Quantitative research method

From 25/03/2018 to 31/03/2018, resettlement consultant carried out socio-economic survey<sup>4</sup> and survey on affected land/ assets in 09 communes/towns in the project area including: Ky Trinh Ward, Ky Phong, Ky Bac, Huong Tho, Son Le, Son Tien, Son Mai, Ngoc Son communes and Ky Thinh Ward.

- Socio-Economic Survey (SES) by questionnaire: 65.9% of affected households whose land is acquired were surveyed, including: (i) households are affected with agricultural land, forest and aquaculture land and (ii) 100% severely affected households. As result, totally 58 households in the project area were surveyed. SES sample for affected households are in Annex 3.
- The Inventory of Losses (IOL) is carried out with 100% affected households. Also every households should have been consulted even if they did not fill survey form.

٠

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Use SES questionnaire for Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project - Ha Tinh Subproject

30. Entering and processing data. Information collected from the field visit will be processed by specialized software such as SPSS (Quantitative) and NVIVO (Qualitative).

## 3.2. Results of Socio-Economic Survey of Affected Households in the Project Area

## 3.2.1. Survey Scope

- 31. Regarding to land acquisition for subproject works, survey results showed that the subproject will affect 88 households, in which 67 households are directly affected by land acquisition. The subproject implementation does not affect any public works and sensitive works.
- 32. Thus, from 25 to 31, March 2018, SES was carried out for 58 affected households (59.8% total affected households). Details about surveyed scope for each subproject item are as follow:

Table 3. 1: Socio-Economic Survey Scope

No.	Items	Wards/communes	Vulnerable HHs, severely affected HHs	Marginally affected HHs
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Trinh	0	5
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	3	9
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	2	2
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	4	5
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	2	4
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	2	5
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	1	5
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	0	5
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	1	3
	Total		15	43

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

33. The selection of households to be surveyed is based on the scope of the land acquisition impact, such as loss of agricultural land, loss of residential land and HHs permanently affected with production and business. In addition to the socio-economic survey of AHs (about 20%), the consultant also conducted public consultation with local authorities and AHs in the subproject area.

## 3.2.2. Demographic Characteristics

34. According to survey data from 58 households affected by the subproject, the majority of households consists of 3-5 members (accounting for 63.4%), followed by households with 6 - 8 members, making up 26.7%, and 9.9% households has 1 or 2 members. On average, each AH household in the project area has 4.3 members and the number of labores per household is 3.1.

#### 3.2.3. Education Level

35. According to survey data from 58 affected households, education level of local people in the project area remains quite high. Householders with high school degree account for 39.7% while 50.0% graduated from secondary school; 1.8% of household heads graduated from colleges/ university and 8.5% only graduated from primary school. Householders with high education level are mainly in Ky Trinh and Ky Thinh wards.

Table 3. 2: Education level of household heads

No.	Education level of householders	Numbers (people)	Rate (%)
1	Illiteracy	0	-
2	Primary school	5	8.5
3	Secondary school	29	50.0
4	High school	21	39.7
5	College/University	1	1.8
	Total	56	100.0

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

## 3.2.4. Occupation of Household Heads

36. The survey results showed that the main source of income for affected households is mainly from agricultural activities, typically rice cultivation and livestock. Agricultural production is a great determinant of the stability and well-being of the household. Out of 58 surveyed AHs, 47 household heads (81.0%) are farmers, 08 householders (13.8%) do small business, 01 is civil servant, and 02 remaining are hired labor and freelance.

Table 3. 3: Occupation of household heads by subproject items

No.	Items	Wards/	Tot al	Agri	culture	Business/ Services		Civil servant		Others	
				HHs	%	HHs	%	HHs	%	HHs	%
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Trinh	6	5	83.3	0	0.0	1	16.7	0	0
1	Loi Dong Reservon	Ky Thinh	12	9	75.0	2	16.7	0	0.0	1	8.3
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	2	2	100.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	7	4	57.1	3	42.9	0	0.0	0	0
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	5	5	100.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	8	6	75.0	1	12.5	0	0.0	1	12.5
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	6	6	100.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	8	6	75.0	2	25.0	0	0.0	0	0
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	4	4	100.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0
	Total		58	47	81.0	8	13.8	1	1.7	2	3.4

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

## 3.2.5. Income and Expenditure

37. According to results of Socio-Economic Survey, AHs' income is mostly above 1.5 million dong/person/month (81.0%), those with income from 1-1.5 million dong/person/month account for 12.1% while those with income below 1 million dong/person/month make up 6.9%, these HHs are poor, near-poor HHs and elderly HHs. Poor, near-poor HHs in subproject areas are mainly in Son Tien, Son Le communes. These two communes have the highest rate of poor HHs in project area with 11.1% of HHs are poor and near-poor HHs. Income of surveyed HHs is presented in the following table:

Table 3. 4: Average income

No. Items		Wards/ communes Total		Below 700,000 VND/ month		From 700,000 – 1,000,000 VND/month		From over 1,000,000- 1,500,000 VND/month		Over 1,500,000 VND/month	
				HHs	%	HHs	%	HHs	%	HHs	%
1	Loi Dong	Ky Trinh	6	0	0	0	0	0	0.0	6	100.0
1	Reservoir	Ky Thinh	12	0	0	2	16.7	1	8.3	9	75.0
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	2	0	0	0	0	2	100.0	0	0.0
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	7	0	0	1	14.3	1	14.3	5	71.4
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	5	0	0	0	0	0	0.0	5	100.0
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	8	0	0	0	0	2	25.0	6	75.0
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	6	0	0	0	0	1	16.7	5	83.3
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	8	0	0	0	0	0	0.0	8	100.0
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	4	0	0	1	25	0	0.0	3	75.0
	Total		58	0	0	4	6.9	7	12.1	47	81.0

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

- 38. According to SES reports in 2017 of subproject communes/towns, average income of AHs is approximately 24.6 million VND/person/year. In which, Ky Trinh Ward has the highest income per capita with 52.4 million VND/person/year while Ky Bac commune has the lowest income level with 25.66 million VND/person/year.
- 39. Out of 15 vulnerable households losing 10% or more of agricultural land, there are 7 poor households, 02 policy household, 01 elderly household and 05 women-headed HHs with dependants. The survey results show that these HHs are in Ky Bac and Son Mai communes and their income are mainly below 1 million dong/person/month.

## 3.2.5.1. Household Equipment

- 40. Income level of households is the decisive factor on their expenditure, and with such income, the majority of surveyed households said that they do not have enough money to cover their living expenses (including: eating, children's education, medical treatment and so on). Their income mainly depends on agriculture. Thus, during the project implementation, poor households, ethnic minorities, policy households, etc. should be paid special attention in the case of their livelihood affected by the subproject, and it woule be difficult for their income and livelihood restoration and and stability.
- 41. Value of assets in each household depends heavily on their economic condition. In the surveyed areas, average-income households is majority, thus, most of their assets are fundamental and low value equipments, common and. Specifically, 91.4% of households own motorbikes, 100% have mobile phones and colored television, only 62.1% of households have bicycles, etc. Household equipment is presented in detailed as follows:

Table 3. 5: Household Equipment

No.	Equipment	Number of HHs	Rate
1	High quality wooden furniture	51	87.9%
2	Motorbike	53	91.4%
3	Bicycles	36	62.1%
4	Radio	9	15.5%
5	Colored television	58	100.0%
6	Fridge	46	79.3%
7	Washing machine	29	50.0%
8	Telephone	58	100.0%

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

#### 3.2.6. Vulnerable households

42. Consultation results with local authorities and survey by questionnaire in the project area showed that, out of 88 households affected by subproject works, there are 15 vulnerable HHs, including: 07 poor households; 05 women-headed households with dependents; 01 elderly household; and 02 policy households.

Table 3. 6: Vulnerable affected households in subproject areas

				Vulnerab	le households	
No.	Items	Wards/ communes	Poor household	Policy household	Household with the elderly	Women- headed household
1	I. i D D i .	Ky Trinh	-	1	-	-
1	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh	2	-	-	1
2	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong	2	-	-	-
3	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac	3	1	-	1
4	Dap Buom Reservoir	Huong Tho	-	1	1	-
5	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le	-	-	-	2
6	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien	-	-	-	1
7	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai	0	-	-	-
8	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son	-	1	0	-
	Total		7	2	1	5

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

43. Out of total 15 vulnerable households, there is no household severely affected by losing 10% or more of agricultural land.

## 3.2.7. Land Use Right Certificates (LURCs)

44. Through survey of land use right certificate and houses on land (LURCs in general), 76.1% of households have LURCs or have lease contracts with local PCs for agricultural cultivation, only 23.9% of households cultivate on land along streams and rivers. The majority (91.1%) of householders named in the LUCs are men, 3.1% are female and 5.8% of LURCs are named by both husband and wife. They are all entitled to receive compensation and assistances from the project.

## 3.2.8. Access to Utilities and Services

- 45. **Use of electricity:** According to consultation results, 96.2% of surveyed households use the national power grid with their own electricity meters and the average electricity consumption of a household is about 127,000 VND/household/month.
- 46. **Use of water for cooking, living and production:** Out of 58 surveyed households, 30.7% of households use lake water for living and cooking; 54.6% use water from drilled or dug well and 14.7% use storm water.
- 47. **Use of toilets:** Out of 58 surveyed AHs, 84.7% of households have their own toilets and 15.3% do not. In the project area, most of the households use two-compartment toilets and ash toilets, the rate of using the septic tank is only 37%.
- 48. **Waste collection**: Currently, there is waste collection system in subproject communes and it still works quite effectively once a week. In other communes without this system, people often throw rubbish into streams, rivers or their gardens.

# 4. PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES FOR COMPENSATION, ASSISTANCE AND RESETTLEMENT

- 49. All affected people identified in the project area prior to the cut-off date of the baseline survey (BLS) will be entitled to compensation for affected properties and other assistance to help them improve or at least maintain their living, income and production capacity as prior to the project. Cut-off date is the date on which the competent authority releases land recovery notice for the project (Clause 1, Article 67, Land Law 2013) prior to conducting DMS at each subproject/component. A census will be conducted before the cut-off date to list all potential affected households. Who encroaches on or creates new property (upgrade, build new house/structure, plant new trees) in the subproject area after the cut-off date will not be entitled to compensation or any other assistance.
- 50. Based on feasibility studies, baseline survey, initial social impact assessment, assessment of resettlement impact, affected people and assets and other impacts through IOL. Based on the policy objectives, harmonized land acquisition and resettlement policies and legal regulations, rights of each affected group are mentioned in the entitlement matrix below.

.

Table 4. 1: Matrix of Entitlements

Type of Loss/Impacts	Application	Entitlements	Implementation Arrangements
1. Production land <sup>5</sup> (Agricultural land, garden, pond) in or out of residential land.	Legal land users 1.1. Marginal loss (< 20% of land holding or < 10% for vulnerable group) The remaining area of affected plot is still economically viable for use or meets the expected personal yield. (65 HHs)  1.2. Loss of no less than 20% or no less than 10% for vulnerable groups (2 HHs)	Cash compensation at replacement cost (free from taxes and transaction costs) for the affected area of the land.  Land for land compensation should be as the preferred option. If land is not available, or at the PAP's choice, cash compensation can be provided for the lost area at 100% of land replacement cost. The PAP will be provided with the additional rehabilitation measures to restore the lost income sources.	- Affected households to be notified at least 90 days before land recovery by the Project The owner of land will hand over the land within 20 days (in accordance with applicable laws at the project time) from the date District Compensation Board fully pays compensation for land Other assistance options are decided by each province/city based on local conditions Affected households to be notified at least 90 days before land recovery by the Project The owner of land will hand over the land within 20 days from the date when the District Compensation Board has paid compensation and other allowances in full For poor, vulnerable and severely affected farmers, including landless, allocation of arable land equal to per capita arable land in commune, or if there no land available for allocation or, on the PAPs request through informed choice, training/rehabilitation programs will be provided to at least restore, if not improve, their income and living standards.
	Land Users with temporary or leased rights to use land (21 HH)	Cash compensation at the amount corresponding to the remaining investment on the land	Ţ

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The sub-categories of productive land such as agricultural, forestry, garden, aquaculture and pond will be compensated at different rates. These will be specified and detailed in the Resettlement Action Plan (RAP) to ensure the compensation is reflective of current rates and takes into account geographic variation. Land on which businesses are located will be compensated as detailed in the section on relocation of business.

Type of Loss/Impacts	Application	Entitlements	Implementation Arrangements
2. Residential land	<b>2.1.</b> Marginal loss (i.e., land is still viable for use and not requiring relocation. (10 HHs)	Compensation for loss of land in cash at (i) replacement cost to the legal and legalizable land users; (ii) a financial assistance of an agreed amount to the land users not having recognizable land use right.  If PAPs have to rebuild their houses, they will receive a house rental allowance for 3 months in recognition of the time needed to rebuild their houses.	<ul> <li>Affected household to be notified at least 180 days before land recovery by the Project.</li> <li>The owner of land will hand over the land within 20 days from the date when the District Compensation Board has paid compensation in full.</li> </ul>
3. Crops and Trees, aquaculture products	Owners regardless of tenure status. (88 HHs)	For annual and perennial standing crops or trees, aquaculture products regardless of the legal status of the land, compensation in cash will be paid to the affected persons, who cultivate the land, at full replacement cost in local markets to ensure the compensation is sufficient to replace the lost standing crops, trees or aquaculture products.	PAPs will be given notice several months in advance of acquisition. Crops grown after the cut-off date will not be compensated.
4. Public structures	Loss of, or damage to assets (9 CPCs)	Either in (i) cash compensation to cover the cost of restoring the facilities or (ii) in kind compensation based on the negotiation between District Compensation Board and owners of assets.	For public structures, the displacement will be carried out by the owners prior to the work commencement.
5. Loss of Income/ Livelihood due to loss of productive land	Impacts due to permanent loss of 20% or more of their total productive land or where <20% land affected but the remaining land is rendered unviable.  (Legal, legalizable land users and PAPs with lease agreement over the affected land)  (2 HHs)	- Allowance for livelihood stabilization: Affected person will be compensated with 30kg of rice/person/month, including:  (a): Affected households losing 20% to 70% of their agricultural land will be assisted for 6 months if the remaining land is viable for continued use, and for 12 months in case the remaining land is rendered unviable and entire land is acquired by the project. In some special cases, in extremely difficult areas, the assistance may be given up to a maximum of 24 months.  (b) Affected households losing more than 70% of their agricultural land acquired will be assisted	

Type of Loss/Impacts	Application	Entitlements	Implementation Arrangements
		for 12 months if the remaining land is viable for	
		continued use and for 24 months in case the	
		remaining land is rendered unviable and entire	
		land is acquired by the project. In some special	
		cases, in extremely difficult areas, the assistance	
		may extend to a maximum of 36 months; In	
		addition, these PAPs will be targeted for	
		livelihood restoration program;	
		(c) households affected by loss of <20% of land	
		and the remaining land is rendered unviable for	
		continued use, the PAPs will be provided	
		assistance for 12 months;	
		Assistance for agricultural, garden and pond	
		land in the residential area adjacent to	
		residential land, but not recognized as	
		residential land: Additional assistance (40% of	
		the cost of compensation for the adjacent	
		residential plot) for garden land and pond land;	
		and (at 50% of the cost of compensation for the adjacent residential plot) for agricultural land.	
		In case of land-for-land compensation, PAP will	
		be assisted with seedlings, agricultural-forestry	
		extension programs, husbandry etc.	
		Job change assistance: Every PAP affected by	
		loss of productive land, irrespective of the degree	
		of impact, will be provided with additional	
		assistance equivalent to at least 5 times the	
		agricultural land price established by PPC.	
		Support for vocational training and job	
		creation: At least one member of households	
		affected by loss of productive land will be	
		entitled to vocational training and assistance in	
		getting employment in the province. The PAPs	
		participating in such training programs will be	
		exempted from payment of tuition fees course	

Type of Loss/Impacts	Application	Entitlements	Implementation Arrangements
6. Allowances/	Loss of land and on-land assets	will be paid directly to the vocational training centers. After finishing training courses, they will be given priority to be recruited in local manufacturing industries.  Specific assistance to vulnerable groups would be	- Allowance for policy households as per
Assistance for Vulnerable Households	Affected vulnerable groups regardless of severity of impacts. The vulnerable groups were defined as in Terms of Terminology (15 HHs)	as follows:  - For landless households, assistance through provision of an apartment that PAP can either pay in installment to buy or rent it for living.  - Policy HHs: (i) Relocated Households that include heroic mothers, heroic armed force, heroic labor, war veterans, wounded or dead soldiers families will be provided with support as regulated by the PPCs; (ii) Poor Relocated Households or Poor Households where 20% or more of their productive land is affected or where <20% land is affected but the remaining land is rendered unviable and to be certified by local authority.  - Other vulnerable groups affected by the Project, whether they have to relocate or not, (female headed households with dependents, households with disabled persons, elderly without any source of support, ethnic minority households) will get the same support given to poor households in accordance with the provincial policy.  - These households are entitled to take part in Income Restoration Program	Government regulation (heroic mothers, wounded, dead soldiers). If the household is eligible to more than one additional support allowance for the vulnerable people, only one package with the highest value will be applied.

Type of Loss/Impacts		Application	Entitlements	Implementation Arrangements
6.	Temporary impacts	HHs with lost income due to water loss during reservoir/dam rehabilitation	Full payment for all losses at replacement cost; Priority of participation in agricultural extension, and other assistance of the locality.	During construction period the number and magnitude of impact will be identified and provided with compensation/assistance as per RPF.  People to be assisted must be specified and consulted fully.
7.	Other impacts may be identified during implement ation	Individuals, organizations in the project area (9 CPCs)	Entitlements to compensation and other assistance would be provided in accordance with the compensation policy.  Secondary impacts on production and business or PAPs isolated from access to resources temporarily have to be compensated and supported in accordance with RAP.	In case of impacts on livelihoods of PAPs, the contractors, construction units have to agree with the households on payment for disruption of business.

# 5. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA AND ENTITLEMENTS

# 5.1. Affected people (AP)

- 51. Project affected people are those who are directly affected by the Project through the loss of land, residences, other structures, business, assets, or access to resources, specifically:
  - People whose agricultural land will be affected (permanently or temporarily) by the Project;
  - People whose residential land/houses will be affected (permanently or temporarily) by the Project;
  - People whose leased houses will be affected (permanently or temporarily) by the Project;
  - People whose businesses, agricultural activities, occupations, or places of work will be affected (permanently or temporarily) by the Project;
  - People whose crops/ trees (annual and perennial) will be partially or entirely affected by the Project;
  - People whose other assets or access to those assets will be partially or entirely affected by the Project; and
  - People whose livelihoods will be affected (permanently or temporarily) due to restriction of access to protected areas by the Project.
  - People whose face water shortage for irrigation during construction

# 5.2. Identification of Vulnerable Groups or Households

- 52. Through initial quick socio-economic surveys, vulnerable groups will typically include:
  - Poor and near poor households as identified by MOLISA and according to local regulations;
  - Poor landholders that have limited productive land (this will be determined by the minimum amount of farm land needed to be a viable farmer in the project area);
  - Ethnic minority housholds;<sup>6</sup>
  - Mentally and physically handicapped people or people in poor physical health; infants, children and women without assistance; poorest female headed households;
  - Poor female-headed households or female-headed households with no other assistance;
  - Other APs identified by the project management unit and who may not be protected through national land compensation or land titling; or
  - Any additional groups identified by the socio economic surveys and by meaningful public consultation.

# 5.3. Eligibility

53. The eligibility to compensation is determined by asset ownership criteria as follows:

(i) Those who have formal legal rights to land (including customary and traditional rights recognized under the laws of the country. In the consideration of such cases, it is also

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Any land acquistion of EMs will be in conformity with the Ethnic Minority Policy Framework prepared for the Project under regulations in WB's OP 4.10

- useful to document how long AHs have been using the land or the assets associated with it);
- (ii) Those who do not have formal legal rights to land at the time the census begins but have a claim to such land or assets provided that such claims are recognized under the laws of the country or become recognized through a process identified in the RAP;
- (iii) Those who do not have formal legal rights or compensation claims to the land they are occupying.
- 54. People under item (i) and (ii) are provided compensation for the acquired land and other assistances. People under (iii) are provided with resettlement assistance in lieu of compensation for the land they occupy, and other assistance, if necessary, to achieve the objectives set out in this policy, if that land is occupied prior to a cut-off date established by the borrower and acceptable to the World Bank. People who encroach on the area after the cut-off date are not entitled to compensation or any other form of resettlement assistance. All people included in (i), (ii), or (iii) are provided with compensation for loss of owned or used assets other than land.

#### 5.4. Entitlements

55. Based on eligible groups, entitlements may be compensation payments and other forms of assistance provided to displaced persons (refer to Entitlement Matrix).

# 5.5. New HHs after the cut-off date

- 56. Those households splitting from larger families after the cut-off-date who meet the following conditions shall be recognized as eligible AHs:
  - a. Splitted from households with at least 2 couples and more than 6 people
  - b. Certified by CPCs for splitted households;
- 57. Newly born children, spouses of persons named in the household registration books, people who have completed military service, and people who have just returned from schools to live with the AHs from the cut-off date to the date of compensation payment will be entitled to compensation and support outlined in the Resettlement Policy Framework.

# 6. LIVELIHOOD RESTORATION PROGRAM

#### 6.1. Income Restoration and Assistance Policies

- 58. When implementing the project, apart from the construction of meaningful socioeconomic structures, livelihood of AHs should be paid attention to.
- 59. The objective of income restoration program is to support AHs with income loss such as (i) terminated/affected production and business due to loss of premises, means of production and (ii) changed occupations because of acquired agricultural land, etc., to earn similar or higher income than before project and make sure that AHs will adapt to new conditions at the soonest.
- 60. The project ensures full compensation and assistance at replacement cost for the affected land, buildings and assets. Besides, policies to support income restoration for those AHs must be implemented as stated in the Resettlement Policy Framework of the Project.

# 6.2. Participating Households

- 61. According to IOL & SES results, there are 97 households affected with land, trees and other structures, in which 17 HHs are eligible for participate in the income restoration program, in detail:
  - 15 affected vulnerable households
  - 2 servely affected HHs by loss of 20% or more of their production land holding;

## 6.3. Demand analysis

62. An in-depth interview and public consultation was carred out by the Consultant for households participating in the income restoration program. The survey shows that out of 88 AHs (not inclusive of 09 CPCs), there are 17 above mentioned households engaging in the program. The demand analysis is premented in the following table. This will be updated during RAP implementation.

**Table 6. 1:** AH's demand on participation in income restoration program

No.	Programs	%
1	Vocational training	35.3%
2	Agricultural support (cultivation and breeding)	26.5%
3	Credit support for economic development	26.6%
4	Others	6.6%
5	Total	100%

Source: SES Survey, March 2018

#### 6.4. Proposed Income Restoration Program

#### **Activity 1- Vocational training**

#### Assistance for job changing and job creation

63. Ha Tinh Subproject will result in land acquisition, including acquired agricultural land, affecting lives of households, especially farmers. Thus, in addition to full compensation for land, affected works and assets at replacement cost, following supports are also provided:

# Support for vocational training and vocational guidance in cash:

64. For severely households affected by agricultural land acquisition, these households will be assisted at 3.0 times (300%) of agricultural land cost for the entire acquired agricultural land.

#### Training programs on agriculture, husbandry:

- 65. Discussion with local authorities in subproject communes shows that currently, in project communes/wards, there are many training courses on agricultural development organized by Agricultural Extension Center, cooperatives and Divisions of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs of districts. Hence, the income restoration program for households affected with agricultural activities in the project area will be proposed in combination with the local vocational training programs for rural workers. Training courses include:
  - Training in veterinary: caring techniques and disease prevention for cattle and poultry
  - Technical transfer: planting techniques of fruit and industrial trees
- 66. Besides, assistances for working-age people who are directly affected with agricultural production and are in need of vocational training, job change and introduction and loans are in accordance with Decision No.52/2012/QD-TTg of the Prime Minister, to be specific:
- 67. Support for vocational training:
  - Vocational training allowance includes cost of taking the course: (i) short-term vocational courses (elementary level or vocational training in less than 3 months) under the GoV's Scheme on Vocational Training for Rural Workers until 2020; (ii) Vocational training at intermediate and college levels. Vocational training schools in Ha Tinh province include: Vocational School in Ha Tinh Province (Address 1: No.454, Ha Huy Tap, Ha Tinh city, Ha Tinh province), Ky Anh Vocational Training Center Ha Tinh (Address: Hung Binh street, Ky Anh town, Ky Anh district, Ha Tinh province), Ha Tinh Industrial Vocational College (Address: Km 500 + 500 NH. 1A, Thach Trung commune, Ha Tinh city, Ha Tinh), Viet Duc Vocational Industrial School Ha Tinh (Address: 371 Nguyen Cong Tru, Ha Tinh city, Ha Tinh province)
  - Support of credit loans for pupils and students is in accordance with current regulations. According to Decision No. 157/2007/QD-TTg dated 27/09/2007 by the Prime Minister, the maximum loan for a pupil, student is 800,000 VND/month (8,000,000 VND/ school year). Specific loan amount for each pupil, student is determined based on their tuition, living expense and borrower's demand, but is not higher than 800,000 VND/ month. In addition, pupils, students in policy households or difficult households can be excempted from tuition.

# Activity 2: Job employment assistance

- 68. Domestic job creation support:
  - Consulting services on apprenticeship, employment will be provided free of charge at the Employment Center directly under Ha Tinh Department of Labour Invalids and Social Affairs;
- 69. Support for contractual abroad working include:
  - 100% tuition fee of vocational training and learning foreign languages and fostering necessary knowledge;
  - 100% of costs for heath examination, passport, visa and judicial records before going abroad;
  - Daily meals during the studying time;

- Round-trip tickets from residence to the studying place in the distance of over 15km;
- Loans with preferential interest rates from the Bank for Social Policies to cover necessary expenses for fixed-term abroad working.

# **Employment introduction**

- 70. The Project will give priorities for capable people, regardless of men or women, during the project construction and operation: The Project will consider and give priorities to members of relocated households to work as construction workers for subproject items.
- 71. In addition, there are employment centers under DOLISA in Ha Tinh province which are operating effectively in provision of training and employment service for local workers, such as, Job Service Center of Ha Tinh city (Address: No.156, Tran Phu street, Ha Tinh city. Telephone: 02393.851.295 02393.853.505).
- 72. Implementation arrangements: Along with dissemination of project information relating to compensation, assistance, resettlement (if any) and site clearance, information on training programs are also provided to affected people.

# Support for Vulnerable Households

- 73. These are special groups that might suffer from disproportionate impacts or impoverishment due to resettlement. They include poor households, policy households, families with meritorious services to the revolution, elderly and woman-headed households with dependants. They hardly become competitive on the labor market and their livelihoods depend on their affected land by the project. Therefore, special support programs for these groups should be carried out. These programs may coincide with the general assistance programs to all affected households but there are certain priorities for vulnerable households.
- 74. Specific support policies include:
  - Giving priority to vocational training or job creation.
  - Food or material assistance for extremely disadvantageous households without labor capacity (combined with social welfare policies of locality)
- 75. For poor households: in addition assistance as regulations, households affected with land will be assisted as follows:
  - Poor AHs losing less than 10% of their land but the remaining area is not sufficient for cultivation will be assisted in cash equivalent to 30kg rice/person/month for 24 months or in accordance with provincial policies; whichever is higher.
  - Other poor AHs: will be assisted in cash equal to 30kg rice/person/month for a 6 months or in accordance with provincial policies; whichever is higher.
  - Other vulnerable groups: Female headed households with dependents, household with disabled persons, elderly households without any support, poor households and ethnic minority households will get the same support given to poor households in accordance with the provincial policies or assisted in cash equal to 30 kg of rice per person per month for 6 months; ; whichever is higher.

# **Activity 3 - Credit Support**

76. In the recent years, the Vietnam Bank for Social Policy (VBSP) in Ha Tinh province regularly coordinated with other agencies, political and social organizations during implementation of credit programs to provide preferential loans to poor and policy households. Thanks to that, many households have pulled out of poverty, living conditions in Ha Tinh villages/hamlets have been improved.

- 77. Currently, Ha Tinh social policy bank has been carried out 05 credit programs including: loan for poor households, employment loan, labor export, loan for pupils and students, clean water rural sanitation. In addition, there are loan programs for production development, program 135, program 33, loan for maintenance, repair of irrigation works and so on.
- 78. Thus, livelihood restoration program, after receiving straight feedbacks and comments from AHs, will basically meet households' demands. In order to maximize program's effectiveness, communication activities will be continued to provide information of project as well as of income restoration programs during the implementation of the project and resettlement plan.
- 79. In addition to measures mentioned above, Ha Tinh PPC will have additional support (if necessary) to assist households affected by land acquisition for the project to restore their life.
- 80. Table below summarizes income restoration programs (IRPs) for AHs of Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement project Ha Tinh subproject.

Table 6. 2: Income Restoration Program for AHs

No.	Income restoration programs	Participants	Implementation Agencies	Implementation Schedule
1	Support in cash for vocational training and employment orientation	Households are affected with agricultural production land	Site clearance Compensation Committee or districts LFDC	Quarter I - 2019
2	Training programs on agriculture and husbandry	All affected households	Agricultural Extension Center, cooperatives and Divisions of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs of the districts	Quarter I/2019 - Quarter III/2019
3	Employment introduction	All affected households	Employment Service Center of Ha Tinh province	
4	Support for vulnerable households	<ul> <li>Poor households</li> <li>Policy households</li> <li>EM households</li> <li>Households with the disable</li> <li>Elderly households</li> <li>Female-headed households with dependents</li> </ul>	Site clearance Compensation Committee or districts LFDC	Quarter II/2018
5	Loan support	All AHs	Social Policy Bank of Ha Tinh province	Quarter II/2019 - Quarter III/2019

#### **6.5.** Cost Estimate for Income Restoration Measures

- 81. Results of consultations with affected households showed that households will continue to produce on the remaining land area and agree that the Project should: (i) support households to maintain their livelihood; and (ii) study compensation plan, provide reasonable support to local people. For 15 vulnerable households and 2 severely households, when being asked about their needs and jobs after land acquisition, answers are as follow: i) 8 household asks for financial support and farming techniques to continue their farm work on their remaining land; ii) 9 households wish to be supported in vocational training and employment introduction for working-age members without stable employment.
- 82. As initial assessment, cost for income restoration program is estimated about VND 51,000,000, including vocational training and management costs. The costs will be funded from local budget and are included in costs for the Project's compensation and site clearance.

Table 6. 3: Cost estimate for Income Restoration Program for AHs

Programs (*)	Estimated costs	Notes	
1. Vocational training	VND51,000,000 (17 HHs x VND3,000,000 per HH)	This is estimated cost for 17 affected households who want to participate in vocational training	
2. Loans for production and business. Based on SES surveys, about 26,6% surveyed households want to be provided with loans with an amount of VND 30 million/HH	This is excluded in the compensation and resettlement plan.	Costs for the item will be funded and managed by or from credit organizations of Ha Tinh province.	

# 7. PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

# 7.1. Objectives of Public Consultation and Information Disclosure

- 83. Information dissemination to people affected by the project and involved agencies is an important part in the course of project preparation and implementation. Consultation with affected persons and their active participation will reduce potential conflict and risk of project delay. This also enables to design a resettlement and rehabilitation program as a general development program, in accordance with needs and priorities of affected people, as a result, it will maximize economic and social efficiency of investment. Objectives of information disclosure and public consultation include:
  - a) Ensure that all affected persons and stakeholders will be involved in making decisions on involuntary resettlement related issues;
  - b) Minimize adverse impacts caused by involuntary resettlement;
  - c) Avoid potential conflicts during project implementation.
- 84. AHs need to be fully informed and consulted in selected areas for resettlement and compensation and assistance plans. Consulting APs is the start of all resettlement activities. Aps are afraid that they might lose their livelihood and communities, or that they are not well prepared for complex negotiations on entitlements. Being involved in the resettlement planning and management will provide them with opportunities to participate in making decisions relating to their lives. Resettlement without consultation may lead to an inappropriate and ineffective strategy. If affected persons are consulted promptly, all project-related conflicts can be timely resolved.
- 85. Following points should be focused on encouraging stakeholders involved in the consultation process:
  - a. Identify and encourage all stakeholders, and especially affected persons to get involved in consultation and participation;
  - b. Develop strategies for stakeholders to participate in the planning, monitoring, implementation and evaluation;
  - c. Explain the strategy and details of information dissemination, and establish procedures to allow affected persons to negotiate their entitlements;
  - d. Attract stakeholders to get involved in making decisions at different stages of project (e.g. compensation mechanism, consultation of affected persons about compensation progress and implementation, etc.);
  - e. Set up the schedule for activities such as information provision, compensation level and method, entitlements, location and relocation plan;
  - f. Establish grievance redress procedures

# 7.2. Procedures of Consultation and Participation

- 86. Responsible agencies: AHs will be informed by Ha Tinh PMU of responsibilities of organizations/ agencies and local authorities relating to resettlement, names and functions of local government staff along with telephone numbers, address and working time.
- 87. Implementation procedures: AHs will be informed of the expected procedure of important resettlement activities and construction can only start after relocation activities are finished and all affected persons move out of the project area. It is necessary to emphasize that after receiving compensation for their lost property, AHs must quicky relocate as stipulated. The CRCs at all levels will be provided with maps, diagrams and statistics of impact magnitude and the implementation plan.

- 88. Information disclosure: The RPF will be disclosed for affected persons and community in public places such as Ha Tinh PMU, DPCs, CPCs and even at community households in residential areas.
- 89. After being approved by the PPC, RAP will be disseminated in public places such as Ha Tinh PMU, DPCs, CPCs, and on the websites of World Bank in Hanoi and Washington D.C.

## 7.3. Public Consultation

- 90. During the project preparation, information disclosure and public consultation are to collect information to evaluate resettlement impacts and figure out recommendations on selected options. This will minimize or eliminate potential negative impacts on local residents and cope with problems arising during project implementation.
- 91. Methods of information disclosure and public consultation include participatory rural appraisal (PRA) and consultation with stakeholders through visits to affected households, public meetings, group discussions, focus group discussion and socio-economic survey.

# 7.4. Public Consultation during the Preparation Phase

- 92. During project preparation, local authorities at all levels have been informed of the proposed project and its objectives and activities. They have been consulted and actively involved in discussions about their preferred development demands and the project's objectives. AHs have been consulted about project's impacts and measures to minimize the negative impacts and to enhance community's benefits. Local authorities have also been advised of agreements and commitments of the implementation of the resettlement policy.
- 93. Ha Tinh PMU, with the assistance of resettlement consultants, has conducted consultations on compensation and resettlement with stakeholders, including officials from CPCs, community leaders and local people in the affected area.
- 94. In mid-March 2018, Ha Tinh PMU sent a Dispatch and Public Consultation Plan to project wards/communes to request local authorities to coordinate and invite affected households to public consultation meetings to ensure their full and effective participation.
- 95. In the end of March 2018, public consultation were also conducted in subproject wards/communes to notify and consult local people and community on the project's policies and their entitlements. Specific programs are summarized below.

Table 7. 1: Public Consultation on Land Acquisition and Resettlement

No.	Location	Time of consultation	No. of participants	Participants	Contents
1	At office of Ha Tinh PMU	8h - March 26, 2018	6	- Representatives of local authorities and organizations: Farmer association, Women's	Description of the Project     Introduction about the project (objectives,
2	Head Office of Son Mai CPC	13h30 - March 27, 2018	37	Union, Fatherland Front, Youth's Union,	locations, scale and plan of
3	Head Office of Ky Trinh ward PC	14h March 27, 1818	40	etc Representatives of	- Technical proposal of the
3	Head Office of Ky Bac CPC	8h00 - March 28, 2018	43	AHs - Representatives of	implemented in
4	Head Office of Ky Phong CPC	14h00 - March 28	41	Ha Tinh PMU	- Policies related to
5	Head Office of Ky Thinh ward PC	8h00 - March 29, 2018	6	- Representatives of Consultant	compensation, support and site clearance/ resettlement
6	Head Office of Son Le CPC	8h00 - March 30, 2018	42		of GoV, WB and the Project.  2. Public consultation about
7	Head Office of Son Tien CPC	8h00 - March 30, 2018	46		resettlement issues and options to arrange
8	Head Office of Son Mai CPC	14h March 30, 1818	34		resettlement for displaced HHs;
9	Head Office of Huong Tho CPC	14h March 30, 1818	43		

(Source: Resettlement Survey, March 2018)

96. Results of public consultation with local people showed that in the project area, people are quite active in expressing their opinions about project implementation. Consultation results are shown in the table below:

Table 7. 2: Results of public consultation meetings with prioritized work items under the Subproject

No.	Components/ Works	Location	Public opinions	Feedback from the Project	Conclusion
а	Khe Buom dam	Huong Tho commune	Local authorities and people agree with the project and expect the project to be implemented soon in Huong Tho commune to ensure the supply of irrigation water, however the subproject can affect people's lives during construction and rehabilitation period.  In addition, it is necessary to early publicize satisfactory compensation and assistance policies.  To minimize impacts on crops, the construction period should avoid period from September to December, hence the proposed time of water supply must be reasonable.	from the villagers and prepare plans to minimize affects to environment and local households. The compensation policy for AHs will be implemented in accordance with the policies of the GoV and donors. In addition to compensation payment, AHs will receive additional support such as	100% of participants in consultation meetings agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.
b	Ba Khe Reservoir	Ky Bac commune	Local authorities and people agree with the project and expect the project to be implemented soon.  Positive impact is to supply water to production and cultivation activities. In the construction process, some negative impacts might appear such as dust, noise and temporary water shortage; or social disorder due to influx of workers from other places.  Transportation time must be reasonable to minimize the impact on local living.	The project partner will receive comments from the villagers and make the plans which affect the households at lowest level as possible.  Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The compensation policy for AHs will be implemented in accordance with the policies of the GoV and Donors. In addition to compensation for land and on-land	All delegates participating in the project consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation

No.	Components/ Works	Location	Public opinions	Feedback from the Project	Conclusion
				assets, AHs will receive additional support such as life subsistence, job change and so on.  The project would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support the project to ensure its implementation schedule.	
c	Nuoc Xanh Reservoir	Ky Phong commune	Local people expect the project to be implemented soon to ensure water resource for domestic activities and irrigation in the area of 400 HHs along with dyke, contributing mitigation of flood, protection of lives and properties of local people.  It is recommended that the project be carried out before the rainy season to ensure water level in the project.  Some affected households need to agree and support the project implementation.  At the same time, the pump is needed for water supply for rice to maintain its productivity	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The compensation policy for AHs will be implemented in accordance with the policies of the GoV and Donors.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the project so that the project can be completed on schedule.	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.
d	Loi Dong Reservoir	Ky Thinh ward Ky Trinh ward	Local people and authorities agreed with the rehabilitation of Loi Dong Reservoir. In the process of construction, there are many arised issues. At present, there are many households living on dykes and lakes. And the rehabilitation and dredging of lake bed must be done as regulated. Loi Dong Reservoir provides water for	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will receive a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the project to ensure its	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.

No.	Components/ Works	Location	Public opinions	Feedback from the Project	Conclusion
			about 40 hectares, in the project area there are more than 30 households nearby, access roads should be constructed for production purposes. Households need to receive adequate compensation for crops.	implementation schedule.	
e	Da Den Reservoir	Ngoc Son commune	Local people and authorities agreed to implement the project and will try to overcome difficulties caused by the project.  The duration of the subproject should be appropriate to the cropping season of the people, which has the least impact on the crop.  Da Den Reservoir provides water for about 25ha of rice, so it is necessary to minimize the impact during construction to paddy field.  There is a need of policies to support households affected by the construction in agricultural production.  Construction time could be from March to April every year  Agricultural production of households will be affected for about 1 or 2 years, so policies to support and restore livelihoods of local people are necessary when construction starts.	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the project to ensure its implementation schedule.	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.
f	Khe Co Reservoir	Son Le commune	Local people completely agreed with the project, because it ensures the lives of people near the dam and flood	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support

No.	Components/ Works	Location	Public opinions	Feedback from the Project	Conclusion
			spillway. It is recommended to support the construction of access road to the dam because in the event of broken dam, 10 households will be affected. In the process of construction, problems or incidents will be solved jointly. In the process of construction, affected crop and land should be satisfactorily compensated for households.	well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the project to ensure its implementation schedule.	the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.
g,	Khe De Reservoir	Son Mai commune	In case of water shortage due to construction, it is necessary to ensure the water supply for cultivation.  It is recommended that the PMU expand the access road for people living near the dam  The PMU should work closely with local authorities to address issues such as environmental pollution, traffic works.  It is recommended that the PMU inform and consult with people before the project completion and handover.	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the project to ensure its implementation schedule.	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.
I,	Khe Nhay Reservoir	Son Tien commune	The works should be supervised and in good quality; the degraded spillway is frequently flooded in the rainy season, affecting the safety and lives of people.  If land, trees, crops and structures are affected by the construction, reasonable compensation is needed	Prior to conducting work at locality, the project implementation unit will make a notification as well as a detailed work plan to send to the locality.  The project unit would like the local authorities and people to cooperate and support for the	100% of participants in consultation meetings in localities agreed to support the project implementation. AHs are willing to participate in site clearance for the project implementation.

No.	Components/ Works	Location	Public opinions	Feedback from the Project	Conclusion
			and at the same time there must be agreement between the commune and households.  It is necessary to choose the reasonable construction time, from January to June (dry season), not the rainy season, which can affect the construction.	implementation schedule.	

97. After the survey, a meeting was organized with local authorities to report all survey/consultation results. At the same time, other related information were collected, advantages and disadvantages, lessons learnt and proposed measures were discussed and addressed in the resettlement plan and monitoring indexes were established for next steps.

# 7.5. Consultation during project implementation

- 98. During the project implementation, Ha Tinh PMU, with the support from the Consultant, shall undertake following tasks:
  - (i) Provide information to stakeholders at all levels throughout training courses. Provide detailed information on project policies and implementation procedures.
  - (ii) Organize information dissemination and consultation to all affected persons during project implementation.
  - (iii) After DMS results are available, update compensation rates in updated RAP. DRC will reconfirm the scale of land acquisition and impacts on properties based on consultation and complete the compensation plan for each affected household.
  - (iv) The compensation plan finalizes affected assets and entitlements of households. IOL minute must be signed by affected persons to demonstrate their concurrence with the evaluated results. Any questions of affected persons about the compensation plan must be recorded at this time.
  - (v) Resettlement options should be given to all displaced people (a) to inform them of resettlement options (a clear explanation of each option will be given), (b) to request them to confirm their choice and their preliminary assessment of resettlement site, and (c) to propose PAPs to clarify services that they are using such as education/medical/market and distance of access to those services to ensure development of future infrastructure services.
  - (vi) Consult affected people about their desires for the restoration plan. This will be applied for severely affected and vulnerable people. CRC will inform affected persons of the plan and their entitlement to technical assistance before asking about their demands for support.

#### 7.6. Public consultation

99 Public consultation: During preparation of detailed compensation plan/training and job change plans, Ha Tinh PMU or City/District CRC will organize community meetings at each affected commune to provide PAPs with additional information and give them an opportunity to openly disscuss about resettlement policy and procedures. Invitations will be sent to all affected persons prior to the meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to clarify updated information at that time and create opportunities for affected people to discuss concerned issues and information. In addition to notification letters, other measures of information dissemination to affected people and the public such as posters in prominent places, in CPCs' offices or via local radio and newspapers. Both men and women of affected households as well as community members who are interested in the Project are encouraged to participate. In the meeting, there will be explanations about the Project, rights and entitlements of households, and it will be an opportunity for them to comment and question. Similar meetings will be organized periodically throughout the project cycle. There must be meeting minutes signed by CPC committees, representatives of Communal Fatherland Front and those with acquired land.

# 7.7. Community meetings

100. A public meeting will be held in each ward/commune before detailed design to provide AHs with additional information and an opportunity to openly discuss about

resettlement policies and procedures in each affected commune. An invitation will be sent to all AHs before the meeting in their area. This meeting is to clarify disclosed information and to allow them to discuss issues and obtain clarification. In addition to the invitation letter, other means will be used to inform AHs and publicity such as posters in prominent locations. Radio and newspapers will also be used to publicize related information. These announcements and notices will include time, location and participants. Both men and women from affected households will be encouraged to attend, as well as other interested people. The meeting will explain the project information, and households' rights and entitlements and allow local people to ask questions. Such meetings will be conducted periodically during project implementation.

- 101. Relevant information will be given to the AHs at the meetings (verbally, graphically, and/or on printed leaflets). Leaflets will be available at offices of project districts/city/communes/wards. The meetings are proposed to be implemented according to the following forms.
  - (i) Explanations in verbal and visual format, including written information and drawings of the proposed design for subproject works;
  - (ii) AHs can question, comment and are encouraged to contribute their opinions for the restoration plan.
  - (iii) District/City LFDCs will establish a complete list of all AHs at the meetings.
  - (iv) District/City LFDCs will make a complete record of all questions, comments, opinions and decisions that arise during consultation and meetings, and prepare a report of all meetings to Ha Tinh PMU.
- 102. Following information will be given to AHs:
  - (i) **Project components and subprojects.** This includes places where they can obtain more detailed information about the Project.
  - (ii) **Project impacts.** Impacts on local people in the affected areas of the project, including explanations about the necessity of land acquisition for project.
  - (iii) AHs rights and entitlements. These will be defined for AHs. A cut-off date will be announced to identify eligibility. The rights and entitlements for different impacts on AHs, including for those losing businesses, jobs and income, will be explained. Available options include for land-for-land and cash compensation, options regarding reorganizing and individual resettlement, provisions and entitlements to be provided for each AH, entitlement to rehabilitation assistance and opportunities for project-related employment will all be discussed and explained.
  - Grievance redress mechanism. AHs will be informed that project policies and (iv) procedures are designed to ensure that their pre-project living standards will restored. AHs will also be informed that if there is any confusion or misunderstanding about any aspects of the Project, the resettlement committee can help resolve problems. If they have complaints about land acquisition, compensation, resettlement, and restoration process, including compensation rates for their losses, they have the right to make complaints and to have their complaints heard. AHs will receive an explanation about how to access grievance redress procedures. They will be given information with contact details of local offices for grievance redress.
  - (v) **Right to participate and be consulted.** The AHs will be informed of their right to participate in the resettlement planning and implementation. AHs will be represented in District's resettlement committees, and this representative will be

- present in every meetings of commune/district/provincial committees so that their participation in all aspects of the project is assured.
- (vi) **Resettlement activities.** AHs will be explained about compensation calculations and payments; monitoring procedures including interviews with a sample of AHs; relocation; and preliminary information about procedures relating to civil works.
- (vii) **Responsibilities.** Als will be informed of organizations and authorities involved in resettlement and their responsibilities, as well as names and positions of responsible officials with phone numbers, office locations, and working hours if available.
- (viii) **Implementation schedule.** AHs will receive the proposed schedule for main resettlement activities and informed that civil works will only start after all resettlement activities and clearance are completed. It should be clarified that they will move only after receiving full compensation for their lost assets. Implementation schedules will be provided to resettlement committees at all levels.
- 103. Project Leaflet. Project Leaflet including project information will be prepared and handed out to AHs in project preparation and implementation stages to ensure that they are aware of project benefits. The project leaflet will provide details of the compensation and assistance policies in this RPF to propose social impact mitigation measures in case of land acquisition and site clearance by the subproject.

#### 7.8. Information disclosure

104. As requested by WB, a Resettlement Action Plan of the subproject will be disclosed in Vietnamese at local level, especially in the office of Ha Tinh PMU, DPCs, CPCs, Ha Tinh provincial portal and World Bank's website before and after being approved by the Ha Tinh PPC.

#### 8. GRIEVANCES AND REDRESS MECHANISM

# 8.1. Responsibilities

- 105. Agencies responsible for grievance redress during site clearance and compensation includes DPCs, departments and relevant agenciees, site clearance compensation council at all levels, CPCs of affected area, organizations in charge of compensation and site clearance for project construction and Ha Tinh PMU. Depending on functions and responsibilities of each level, grievance redress mechanism will be defined according to legal regulations.
- 106. To ensure that affected households can present complaints related to compensation, assistance and resettlement, detailed grievance mechanism will be established for the project. The objective is to quickly and properly address complaints of affected households. The mechanism will be simplified, transparent and equal. By resolving complaints at each level, project implementation will be more efficient. Those whose land is acquired, if not agree with compensation, assistance and resettlement options, can make complaint in accordance with the law.
- 107. The grievance redress relating to compensation and assistance, clearance and resettlement, redressing grievance responsibilities, validity and procedures shall comply with provisions of Article 204 of the Land Law 2013, Articles 89 and 90 of Decree No. 43/2004/ND-CP dated 15 May 2014 of the GoV on the implementation of the Land Law.
- 108. In cases related to administrative decisions on land management, procedures to address grievances, complaints, recommendations will comply with Law on Complaints 2011 and Circular No. 02/2016/TT-BTP dated 01 February 2016 of the Ministry of Justice.

#### 8.2. Grievance Redress Mechanism

- 109. All inquiries and complaints from APs about entitlements, compensation policies, compensation rate, land acquisition, resettlement and restoration programs will be recorded and addressed by competent authorities. Local social organizations such as Fatherland Front, Farmers' Association, Women's Union, Reconciliation Council, etc. will participate actively in grievance redress.
- 110. The project will also establish a grievance panel that independent from the District compensation board, consist of the district leader, the social safeguards of PMU (1-2 persons), mass organization/civil society/CBOs/NGOs (1 -2 persons), Lawyer Union/associations... and AHs representatives in order to ensure the equity for AHs in grievances Redress Procedure. The Grievance Panel function cost will be covered from project compensation's administration cost. The PMU's monthly monitoring report of compensation and clearance tasks and/or written complaints (if any) will be provided to the panel timely for mediation and resolving timely as well as to allow the panel to monitor all complaint their resolving process.
- 111. The grievance procedures consist of four steps as follows:
- **Step 1**: Complaints from APs are sent to the LFDC, or to CPCs, or to the PMU. The PMU will coordinate with relevant district authorities to solve these complaints.

Land fund development center and/or CPCs shall be responsible for settling these complaints within 30 days. For complicated cases, redressing time may be longer but mut not exceed 45 days from the date of complaint receipt.

The independent grievance panel will, at atep 1 conduct community consultaion meeting and or face to face discussion, for mediation. If it is impossible to solve these complaints at the aforementioned step, the Grievance Panel will, at step 2, propose the solutions to the complaints/grievances to the district authorities to issue complaint resolutions to the AHs within 15 days from the day it is lodged;

**Step 2**: If complainants are unsatisfied with judgment of the LFDC and/or CPCs, they can send their complaints to the District People's from the date of complaint receipt Committee.

Vice President of DPC is the Chairman of SCC and responsible for consideration and settlement of complaints of affected people with participation of relevant agencies. Time to settle complaints by SCC is within 45 days from the date of complaint receipt. For complicated cases, the processing time may be longer but must not exceed 60 days from the date of complaint receipt.

In cases beyond the competence of the SCC, the complaint will be reported to the DPC for resolving, simultaneously notify the complainants. Site Clearance Council (SCC) is responsible for working with DPCs to resolve complaints within 15 days. Upon receipt of the settlement of DPCs, CPCs are responsible for its notification to the complainants.

**Step 3**: If the AHs still do not satisfy with decisions of the DPC (Site Clearance Council) on their appeals, they can submit their cases to the Ha Tinh PPC. The complaint letter will be filed to Ha Tinh PPC.

PPC is responsible for directing Site Clearance Council and relevant agencies to resolve complaints within 45 days from the date of complaint receipt. PPC shall notify complainants of settlement results. If trhe complaint relates to land or structure prices then they need to do another independent appraisal.

**Step 4**: If the complainant is still dissatisfied with decisions of the PPC, the complainant can bring to the provincial People's Council or to the Court to be resolved according to law.

In fact, according to the Law on Complaints 2011, complainants may submit to the court at any given time if they want.

When the complainants send a complaint to the District People's Council, the People's Council will direct the DPC to settle the complaint. Duration of complaint resolution is 45 days from the date that the City People's Council receive the complaint. During the pending time of complain settlement, including the resolution of disputes in court, affected people must hand over the site to the project on schedule. Compensation and support amount will be deposited in a commercial bank account.

112. The agencies responsible for complaints resolution during site clearance and compensation are District People's Committees, relevant departments, CRCs at all levels and CPCs in affected areas. All records of complaints and resolutions are stored at the LFDCs and Ha Tinh PMU. Ha Tinh PMU is responsible for updating the list of complainants and status of complaints in internal monitoring reports.

# 9. IMPLEMENTION ARRANGEMENT

#### 9.1. Institutional Framework

- 113. Resettlement implemention requires the participation of agencies and organizations at all levels. The PPC of province engaged in the Project will take overall responsibility for the implementation of the general resettlement policy framework and specific Resettlement Action Plan of their subproject. LFDCs will be established at provincial/district levels in compliance with provisions of Decree No. 47/2014/CP. Provisions and policies of the RPF and the RAP will be the legal basis for compensation and resettlement activities of the subproject. Agencies in charge of land acquisition and resettlement include:
  - o Ha Tinh PPC
  - o DPCs
  - o Ha Tinh PMU
  - o District/City LFDC
  - o CPCs of project wards/communes;
  - o Representatives of community and AHs;
  - o Independent Monitoring Agency/Unit/Individual

# 9.2. Responsibilities of relevant agencies

#### 9.2.1. Ha Tinh PPC

- 114. Ha Tinh PPC is responsible to or authorizes the District/City PCs to establish and direct the Appraisal Board in accordance with the Project's demands. Ha Tinh PPC or DPCs (if authorized) shall be responsible for:
  - (i) Approve the Resettlement Policy Framework (if authorized by the Government)
  - (ii) Issue announcements or authorizing the district/city PCs to announce information on land acquisition when the Sub-Project location has been selected
  - (iii) Appraise and approving RAP after their final draft is approved by the Bank;
  - (iv) Approve land acquisition and allocation in the Project;
  - (v) Make final decision and releasing unit prices of compensation and assistance rates, and support policies towards AHs and vulnerable groups on the basis of the Resettlement Policy Framework and the approved RAP;
  - (vi) Direct the coordination among concerned agencies and provincial departments to implement compensation, assistance and resettlement in accordance with the approved RAP;
  - (vii) Fully funding resettlement activities;
  - (viii) Ensuring that the resettlement activities of the Sub-Project comply with the Policy Framework and the approved RAP.
  - (ix) Considering resettlement locations for AHs, if requested.

#### 9.2.2. *Ha Tinh PMU*

115. Ha Tinh PMU is responsible for implementation of RAP of the Subproject. Accordingly, the project staff who are qualified and experienced will be appointed or assigned to take responsibility for environmental and social safeguards under the Subproject. They will be involved in training courses in relevant policies and procedures since the first stage of implementation. The list of personnel and their CVs as well as the above-mentioned training

programs should be agreed and approved by the WB. In detail, responsibilities of Ha Tinh PMU include:

- (i) On behalf of the Client or city to assign the specialized officials in charge of implementing and monitoring resettlement activities in line with the Subproject under the management of the PPC or DPC to prepare plans, coordinate and monitor the RAP.
- (ii) To prepare and/or update RAP in accordance with the approved Resettlement Policy Framework and submit it to the PPC/City PC and WB for approval before deploying the approved RAP.
- (iii) To guide all resettlement activities in the project town/district/commune in conformity with the policies and guidelines of the RAP;
- (iv) To establish model procedures/processes regarding information disclosure and relevant consultation organization such as sending a monthly notification to the communities on the Project activities; to coordinate other agencies involved in the RAP, implementing and monitoring resettlement activities.
- (v) To check and advise the Ha Tinh PPC on the compensation rates of land and other assets in coordination with other related government departments and agencies of the Province, based on the principles of the approved Resettlement Policy Framework;
- (vi) To coordinate, supervise, and monitor the implementation of resettlement activities in the Project;
- (vii) To establish a contact mechanism to ensure suitable technical assistance and logistics for the implementation of compensation and resettlement;
- (viii) To set up database criteria on AHs for each component as well as for the entire Project.
- (ix) To establish procedures on internal monitoring to supervise the compliance with the project policies.
- (x) To establish procedures on monitoring coordination between contractors and local communities, ensuring timely and prompt identification and compensation for impacts on public and private properties during construction.
- (xi) To select, monitor, and implement recommendations from the independent monitoring agency and independent valuation agency.
- (xii) To set procedures on promptly implementing necessary measures of adjustments and advising the project owner in handling complaints.
- (xiii) To coordinate with related agencies to provide employment related to the Project for AHs.
- (xiv) To take over acquired land from HHs and hand it over to construction units;
- (xv) To select and mobilize the independent valuation agency to conduct land price survey as a basis for Ha Tinh PPC to make decision on land prices applied to the project and ensure the closeness to the market price.
- (xvi) To cooperate closely with the independent monitoring agency
- (xvii) To report periodically on resettlement activities to the WB.
- (xviii) Ha Tinh PMU of Agriculture and Rural Development needs a staff who oversees directly working with AHs as a first step in redressing grievances. S/he will support the disable/vulnerable groups in appealing grievances. AHs will be free of administrative and legal fees arising during the grievance redressing. Further

information about his/her responsibilities are mentioned in Term of Reference for key social safeguard personnel.

#### 9.2.3. DPCs

- 116. DPCs shall be responsible for:
  - a) Steering, propaganda of organizations, individual about compensation, support and ressettlement.
  - b) District PC will be charge of directing the district compensation council to prepare and implement compensation options.
  - c) Work with Departments, agencies, organizations and the Project Owner for project implementation.
  - d) Deal with complaints related to compensation, support and resettlement.

# 9.2.4. District/city Compensation and Site Clearance Council

- 117. Site Clearance Council (SCC) shall take responsibility for compensation and site clearance for the works in the city/districts, including:
  - (i) Planning and implementing all daily resettlement activities within the city/district.
  - (ii) Making inventories of acquired land, completing compensation lists and tables, and preparing sum-up tables to be submitted to competent authorities for approval and paying compensation directly to each affected person after receiving compensation funds;
  - (iii) Preparing allocated land and relevant procedures for the resettlement of relocated HHs (if any)
  - (iv) Work with relevant agency for conciliation and handling of complaints by AHs on compensation policy and entitlements;
  - (v) If required, establish town/commune compensation board and steer their activities in resettlement activities.
  - (vi) Pay special attention to the needs and aspirations of special groups of people (ethnic minorities) and vulnerable people (children, the elderly, female/single household heads);
  - (vii) Coordinate closely with independent monitoring agencies.

#### 9.2.5. *CPCs*

- 118. Coordinating closely with independent monitoring agencies:
  - (i) Establishing ward-level working groups and manage their operations; assigning ward/commune staff to assist the District/City LFDC and Ha Tinh PMU in preparation off DMS for the Project, land acquisition documents, RAP and implementation of resettlement activities;
  - (ii) Verify AHs' legal titles or certifying their land use or transfer to meet the requirements of compensation;
  - (iii) Support units, agencies, including Ha Tinh PMU in information disclosure and hold public meetings and consultations and consultation with AHs;
  - (iv) Assist units, agencies, including Ha Tinh PMU in demographic surveys, replacement cost surveys, detailed measurement and inventory surveys, and other resettlement activities;

- (v) Get involve in land acquisition and allocation, resettlement, recovery, support and social development support;
- (vi) Support AHs in resettlement and living subsistence.
- (vii) Inform AHs of compensation and monitoring schedule. Sign in compensation minutes with AHs;
- (viii) Ensure full compensation of grievance redress mechanism with AHs. Recording all complaints and record and file complaint documents. Support and consult with AHs, promptly resolve grievances.

# 9.2.6. Affected People (AP)

- 119. AP will be responsible for:
  - (i) Coordinate with survey teams to inventory affected land and other assets as well as identify their entitlements;
  - (ii) Participate in all phases of the RAP preparation and implementation and giving feedback to improve the quality of the RAP and devise solutions for implementing the RAP smoothly; and
  - (iii) Move to new sites in a timely manner after receiving full compensation and entitlements.

# 9.2.7. Independent Moniroting Agency (IMA)

120. It is required to identify and hire an agency/organization or research institute specializing in social sciences, to conduct socio-economic surveys, monitor and evaluate the implementation of the RAP. Ha Tinh PMU will sign a contract with Independent monitoring Agency. Cost for hiring IMA to carry out independent monitoring of resettlement for the subproject will come from the CF. Independent Monitoring Agency (IMA) will report periodically on progress made and to make recommendations concerning resolving the problems detected in the monitoring process.

# 10. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

#### 10.1. Main activities

- 121. To ensure the project is successfully implemented and highly efficient, the main activities should be established through an implementation schedule with timelines. Thereby, the implementation progress of work items at certain times can be evaluated. The plan should be mapped out from the start of the project and prolong throughout the implementation process and continuously to the completion phase of the project. In the Resettlement Action Plan, the main contents needed to be done from commencement to completion phase include:
  - a. Announcement of the cut-off-date and compensation plan: all project affected households are fully informed of the entitlements, and policies in RAP, including the eligibility, entitlements, methods and compensation rate, schedules, grievances and redress. Project Information Booklet (PIB) will be prepared by PMU and then it will be distributed to affected households or announced at the meeting in population groups, ward, district, or in the public consultation. Besides, leaflets, posters were also distributed to each household, posted at public places like Ward People's Committee/ social, cultural houses, clinics, schools, etc. Announced land acquisition policy of the project, decide the investment project approval, approval of the project sdesign.
  - b. Socio-economic survey in affected area.
  - c. Development of the plan on development of resettlement sites.
  - d. Development of the livelihood restoration measures.
  - e. Compensation, support, resettlement and livelihood restoration.
  - f. Assessment of the project's impacts on affected households: One year after the project ended, a social- economic survey in project area will be conducted to assess the impacts of the project on the benefited community and the project affected households. The results of this survey will be served as basis for assessment of the project's impacts on the community and the lessons learnt for the later project operations and design and implementation.

# 10.2. Implementation Schedule

122. Implementation schedule for land acquisition of the DRASIP- Ha Tinh province is shown in the table below:

Table 10. 1: Implementation Schedule

Main activities	Time
Resettlement Action Plan	
Determination of tentative project location and scope of the project's impacts	Quarter IV –2017
Socio-economic survey, preliminary inventory of losses (IOL), public consultation with affected persons and preparing RAP	Quarter I – 2018
Submission of RAP to Ha Tinh PMU for review	Quarter II – 2018
Submission of RAP to WB	Quarter II –2018

Main activities	Time
Implementation of Resettlement Action Plan	
Preparation of cadastral dossiers and land acquisition demarcation	Quarter III – 2018
Implementation of public consultation and information disclosure, detailed measurement survey (DMS), replacement cost survey, prepare detailed compensation	Quarter III – 2018
Compensation payment	Fom Quarter IV– 2018
Site clearance, relocation and restoration measures (if any)	Quarter I/2019 – II/2019
Post-resettlement evaluation	Quarter II – Quarter III/2019

#### 11. MONITORING AND EVALUATION

# 11.1. Monitoring

- 123. Monitoring and evaluation activities during the implementation period and after the resettlement are to ensure that land acquisition and resettlement activities at district level are to be carried out in accordance with the regulations, guidelines specified in the Resettlement Action Plan. The monitoring provides all stakeholders with continuous reflections on the implementation of land acquisition and resettlement. This activity helps assess the actual successful ability and arising difficulties as soon as possible, to facilitate remedying timely in the project operation phase.
- 124. Monitoring includes 2 following purposes:
  - (i) Verify whether the project activities are completed efficiently or not, including quantity, quality and time.
  - (ii) Assess whether these activities reach the objectives and purpose of the Project or not, and if not, how much do they reach.
- 125. Ha Tinh PMU will hire/recruit an Independent Monitoring Agency (IMA) to regularly monitor and supervise the implementation of RAP.

# 11.2. Internal Monitoring

- 126. Internal monitoring of the RAP implementation of the Sub-project is the main responsibility of the implementation agency with the support of the project consultants. The implementation agencies will monitor the progress of RAP preparation and implementation throughout the quarterly progress reports.
- 127. Internal monitoring aims to:
  - (i) Ensure that compensation payment for affected households for the different types of damage is implemented according to the compensation policy agreed in the RPF and RAP.
  - (ii) Ensure that resettlement activities are implemented according to the compensation policy agreed in the RPF and RAP.
  - (iii) Determine whether the conversion process, income restoration measures and resettlement assistance are provided on time or not.
  - (iv) Evaluate whether the income restoration supports have been provided or not yet and propose corrective measures if targets of income restoration for households are not achieved.
  - (v) Disseminate public information and consultation procedures.
  - (vi) Determine whether the complaint procedures have been followed or not and there is any outstanding issue needed the attention by the management level or not.
  - (vii) Prioritize for interests and needs of affected people, especially poor and vulnerable households
  - (viii) Ensure transition between relocation, clearance and start of construction of civil works proceeds smoothly and that construction area will not be handed over until affected households have been compensated, supported and resettled satisfactorily.
- 128. The implementation agencies will collect information every month from the different resettlement committees. A database tracking the resettlement implementation of the Project will be maintained and updated monthly, including redressing of grievances (if any).

- 129. The implementation agencies will submit internal monitoring reports on the RAP implementation as a part of the quarterly report to be submitted to the WB. The internal monitoring reports should contain the following information:
  - (i) Number of affected persons according to types of effect and project component and the status of compensation, relocation and income recovery for each item.
  - (ii) The allocated costs for the activities or for compensation payment and disbursed cost for each activity.
  - (iii) List of outstanding Complaints;
  - (iv) Final results on solving complaints and any outstanding issues that demand management agencies at all levels to solve.
  - (v) Arising issues in the implementation process.
  - (vi) Updated actual schedule of resettlement activities.

# 11.3. Independent Monitoring

- 130. Independent monitoring will be conducted by the consulting organization/ non-governmental organization (NGO) experienced in monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of the socio-economic survey. The Project Management Unit will sign a contract with the independent monitoring organization. The implementation of project independent monitoring will be funded by the official development assistance (ODA) for project. The Independent monitoring organization will report every 6 months on the progress and give relevant recommendations to solve any issues arising in the process of monitoring.
- 131. Objectives: The general objectives of independent monitoring are to periodically supply independent monitoring and assessing results on the implementation of the resettlement objectives, on the changes of living standard and jobs, AHs' income and social foundation restoration, effectiveness, impacts and sustainability of APs' entitlements, and on the necessity of mitigation measures (if any) in an attempt to bring about strategic lessons for making policy and planning in the future.
- 132. Responsible agencies: In accordance with the World Bank's requirements for consultant employment, Ha Tinh PMU will hire an IMA to carry out the independent monitoring and evaluation of RAP implementation. This organization is called the Independent Monitoring Agency (IMA) which specializes in social sciences and has experience in independent monitoring of RAP. The IMA should start its work as soon as the project implementation commences.
- 133. Monitoring indicators include:
  - a. Compensation payment and assistance for affected households are implemented according to the entitlements agreed in the RAP;
  - b. Technical assistance, relocation and allowance:
  - c. Income restoration and entitlements to restoration allowances;
  - d. Information disclosure and public consultation;
  - e. Grievance redress procedures, results of resolving complaints;
  - f. Progress of land acquisition

# **Methodology and Approaches:**

Survey Sample

- 134. A socio-economic survey will be required before, during and after resettlement implementation to provide a clear comparison of success/failure of the resettlement plan. Monitoring will be on a sample basis. Scale of the survey sample may cover 50% relocated households and severely affected households, and at least 10% of the remaining households. Sample survey is implemented twice a year.
- 135. The sample surveys should include women, elderly, and other vulnerable groups. It should balance representation of male and female respondents.

136. Post-resettlement evaluation is implemented every 6 months, after completion of the resettlement activities. Independent monitoring agency will be responsible for: (i) reviewing the documents on compensation, assistance and (ii) work with the CRC and local authorities to collect necessary information and data, (iii) interviews with the people; and (iv) group discussions.

#### Database collection

137. The IMA will store information on monitoring of resettlement, include the results of independent monitoring, collect and update basic information about the affected households. All the collected and updated data will be submitted to Ha Tinh PMU, the managing agency and the World Bank.

# Monitoring report

- 138. The monitoring report will be presented during the meeting between the independent monitoring agency (IMA) and PMU immediately after submitting the report. Solutions will be implemented based on the arising problems are outlined in the report and discussions.
- 139. Independent monitoring reports are made before, during and after resettlement. This report should reflect contents:
  - Verify the internal monitoring results
  - Assess whether the resettlement objectives have been achieved or not; how income resources and living standards of the project affected households are restored and improved
  - Considering whether the entitlements of resettlement are appropriate with conditions of project affected households and meet the resettlement objectives or not.
  - Evaluate the effectiveness, impacts and sustainability of the resettlement; lessons learnt for the planning and developing the future resettlement policy.

#### Post resettlement assessment

- 140. In fact, this is the evaluation at a given point of time on the impact of resettlement and the achieved objectives. The independent monitoring will conduct an evaluation of the resettlement process and impacts from 6 to 12 months after the completion of all resettlement activities. The survey questionnaires for evaluation are used based on the database in the project database system and the questions used in the monitoring activities.
- If this evaluation determines that livelihoods of severely affected households have not been restored appropriately with the objectives of the project, an additional fund will be provided to continue support for households above. The Independent Monitoring Report will be not only sent to Ha Tinh PMU, but also sent directly to the World Bank for following/supervising the progress and effectiveness of the compensation. Or in other words, when a project is not finished, the World Bank will continue monitoring until resettlement activities as mentioned in the RAP have been implemented. When project is completed, the implementation completion report (ICR) will assess the achievements of the resettlement and the lessons learnt and will be incorporated in the evaluation of PMU. This requirement is stated in OP/ BP 4.12, paragraph 12.24. If this evaluation determines the objectives of the resettlement have not been achieved as expected, the ICR will assess the appropriateness of resettlement measures that could be proposed with measures in next time, include follow-up monitoring by the World Bank. The contents of the ICR for next part will be made based on the socio-economic survey of affected households, this survey was conducted at the end of the project (or completion of sub-project), and given the impacts of land acquisition and the impacts on livelihoods for affected households.

# 12. COST ESTIMATES

# 12.1. Funding sources

- 142. The budget for the implementation of the Resettlement Plan will be part of the counterpart fund of Government (budget from Ha Tinh PPC). Ha Tinh PPC will provide counterpart funds for the implementation of compensation and resettlement and will be included in the total investment cost of the project.
- 143. Ha Tinh PMU will disburse funds for land acquisition, support and resettlement of the project through the City/District LFDC (District/City CRC). These agencies will be responsible for making compensation payment directly to affected households of the Project.

# 12.2. Pricing and Compensation for Affected Assets

- 144. As required by the World Bank's OP 4.12 on Involuntary Resettlement, Replacement Costs Survey (RCS) will need to be done to establish basis for calculation of replacement costs for all the lands/crops/structures/assets that will be affected by the Project.
- 145. During the time of the subproject preparation, a quick assessment of provincial rates for land, structures, trees have been carried out by checking successful transactions of residential land, productivity for productive land; comparing with market prices for structures, crop and trees and seeking household perceptions of market rates. As results, the provincial proposed rates are basically equivalent to market prices, and acceptable to local affected people. So during the RAP preparation, the provincial rate is proposed to apply for calculating compensation cost. For detail approaches and replacement cost survey methods are summurarized in Annex 1.
- 146. During implementation phase, more detailed replacement cost survey will be carried out to update this compensation rates, and will be served as basis for compensation and assistances

# 12.3. Cost Estimate

- 147. Cost estimate for RAP implementation includes:
  - a. Cost for the compensation, assistance and resettlement: includes of the items which
    were described in the entitlement matrix and costs for income restoration programs.
    Cost for compensation/assistance of temporary impact (if identified) during
    construction period will be estimated.
  - b. Cost for compensation, assistance and resettlement included costs of detailed measurement survey, land acquisition documentation, independent valuation cost, etc. It is estimated at 2% in maximum of total cost of compensation and restoration support.
  - c. Contingency: The rate for contingency should be at about 10% of total cost of compensation and RAP preparation. The contingency will be used in cases of adjusted compensation rates due to inflation, or any adjustments during implementation of the approved RAP.
- 148. Cost estimate for RAP implementation of the subproject is 2,275,354,800 VND, (equivalent to 100,235.89 USD).

Table 12. 1: Cost estimate for compensation for affected items

		Total amount: e	exchange rate:	
No.	Works	US\$ 1 = VND 22,700		
		VND	USD	
I	Compensation for land	527,362,838	23,231.84	
II	Compensation for structures	234,659,000	10,337.40	
III	Compensation for trees and crops	616,571,000	27,161.72	
IV	Assistances	556,460,200	24,513.67	
V	Vulnerable group assistance	32,000,000	1,409.69	
VI	Restoration program	51,000,000	2,246.70	
VII	Total: I+II+III+IV+V+VI	2,018,053,038	88,901.01	
VIII	Management cost = 2% VII	40,361,061	1,778.02	
IX	Replacement cost survey = 0.5% VII	10,090,265	444.51	
X	Total: VII+ VIII+ IX	2,068,504,364	91,123.54	
XI	Contingencies (10% total XII)	206,850,436	9,112.35	
	Total	2,275,354,800	100,235.89	

149. Detailed cost estimate is shown in Annex 1 of the Report.

# **ANNEXES**

**Annex 1: Replacement Cost Survey** 

Annex 2: Minutes of Public Consultation at project area

Annex 3: Socio-economic Survey for affected households

**Annex 4: Some Pictures of Consultation Meetings** 

**Annex 5: Public information Booklet** 



# IAC VIETNAM CO., LTD

*Headquater:* 21st Floor, Capital Tower Building, No. 109 Tran Hung Dao St.

Cua Nam Ward, Hoan Kiem Dist, Hanoi, Vietnam

Office: 6th Floor, Viettower Building, No. 152 Pho Duc Chinh St.

Truc Bach Ward, Ba Dinh Dist., Hanoi, Vietnam

*Tel, Fax:* +84 24 3266 8024

Email: info@iacvietnam.com

Website: www.iacvietnam.com

#### **ANNEXES**

# **Annex 1: Replacement cost survey**

# A. Principal for Valuation And Compensation for Affected Assets

- 1. As provisions of the WB's policy on Involuntary Resettlement (OP 4.12), a replacement cost survey should be carried out to serve as a basis for determining replacement cost for all impacts on land, trees, aquaculture products, assets and structures by the project.
- 2. The important objective of replacement cost study is to ensure compensation rates for all affected assets at replacement cost. This objective can be achieved through detailed surveys of market and/or other elements such as production capacity, equivalents, values of replacement assets, and disadvantages of affected people, etc. and simultaneous comparison with and evaluation about compensation rates issued by Provincial People's Committees.
- 3. The replacement cost is market price plus tax and transaction fees of the affected assets. Details are as below:
  - Productive land (agriculture, aquaculture, garden, forestry): base on income/harvest output and productivity;
  - Residential land: the replacement cost is based on transaction price of similar land plot on the market. In case of no such transaction, it is possible to base on transaction price of land with equivalent attribute in other locations;
  - Houses and other structures: the replacement cost is based on the market price of materials, labor with no deduction for salvageable building materials.
  - Annual trees: the replacement cost is equivalent to the market price common at the time of compensation;
  - Perennial trees: compensation cost is equivalent to the current market price depending on type, age and output value (future output) at the time of compensation.
  - Timber trees: the replacement cost is based on types, diameters, height of trees and market price.
- 4. Replacement cost survey has been conducted by the Safeguard Team through numerous channels including:
  - Interviewing local officers (at district, commune level), people about the current market price of land in the project area and recent land transaction dossiers. In case of no transaction of land (not residential land) it is possible to base on actual experience such as output and location to identify market price and then discuss and determine replacement cost for such types of land.
  - Meeting with suppliers, building material shops, local contractors to interview and identify current prices of materials, labor and prices for construction of houses and other common facilities.
  - Meeting with land dealer, agricultural experts, staff of local Agriculture Office to verify price for annual and perennial trees; and

- Validation of compensation rates used for assets (land, structures, annual and perennial trees) affected by the project. The reference units for determining compensation rates was discussed with local people, suppliers, land dealers, and other entities to validate if such costs are reflective of market rates and acceptable to local people.
- 5. During the project implementation, a detail replacement cost survey for land, assets and crops affected by the Project will be carried out, and served as a basis for Ha Tinh PPC to make decision on compensation rates closely to the market prices, for certain Ha Tinh subproject.

# B. Approaches and replacement cost survey method

# 1. Approaches

# a) Market Approaches:

- Residential land: review of transaction information, collected market data and consultation with local people in the project vicinities; The differences between land price surveyed in affected areas (included taxes and charges) and benefits people received from the project (receive land in resettlement site with the price stipulated by PPC for relocated households; Actual compensation rate which is applied in the area and agreed by local people
- Houses and structures: Review of market information and data and consultation with Contractors about market unit prices for new construction of houses and structures; Actual compensation rate which is applied in the area and agreed by local people
- Trees and crops: review of market information on trees and crops and consultation with trees and crops buyers and sellers; Actual compensation rate which is applied in the area and agreed by local people:

# b) Cost Approaches

- Houses and structures: survey on construction cost of acquired houses and structures, the compensation rate shall be sufficient to rebuild the affected houses/structures. There have been almost no transfers and trading of agricultural land and other types of land over the past few years. Agricultural land transfers only take place within families, namely relatives without (or not yet) certified by People's Committees of communes/wards, thus it is impossible to determine prices of such transfers.
- Trees and crops: survey on cost of planting acquired trees (from sowing, seedling, nursing to harvesting); the compensation rate shall be sufficient for recovery.
- c) Income Approaches (for Agricultural land): Survey on information about income, costs related to growing of rice, perennial trees, annual trees, etc.; estimation of agricultural land value through income capitalization process;

## 2. Valuation Methods:

#### a. Comparative method

- Residential land: Survey of land transaction unit price in the similar location around the
  project area; estimation of unit price in affected areas based on resettlement plans
  prepared by the local authorities. Comparison this surveyed price with approved
  replacement cost and the compensation rate stipulated under PPC's existing regulations
  to propose an appropriate replacement cost.
- Houses, structures and trees: survey of cost for new construction of houses, structures and the price of selling trees and crops. Comparison this surveyed price with approved

replacement cost and the compensation rate stipulated under PPC's existing regulations to propose an appropriate replacement cost;

#### b. Cost method

- Houses, structures: survey of unit price of materials, equipment, and the cost for new construction of assets which are similar to acquired properties; comparison with estimated results through comparative method to propose an appropriate replacement cost
- Trees and crops: calculation of cost from sowing, seedling, growing and harvesting; comparison with estimated results through comparative method to propose an appropriate replacement cost
- For properties of which replacement cost was approved by the PPC, price fluctuation for similar properties will be determined by the Consultant through identified CPI. If the fluctuation rate isn't over 5%, approved replacement cost is still applied but it must be equal to compensation rate approved at the same time by the PPC

#### 3. Determination of Assets Value

Determination of replacement cost for affected land, houses-structures and crops, trees is based on replacement cost principles. The costs are identified to compensate fully for recovery of these affected asset. The implementation steps are as follows:

- **Step 1:** Updating of the project affected assets list and locally applicable compensation rate.

Results of compensation performance assessment in the areas are as follows:

- Promptly prepare compensation plan and submit to local authorities for approval
  and carry out compensation, support and site clearance to match set schedule. For
  assets of which replacement cost is lower than the compensation rate under the
  PPC's existing regulations, compensation rate provided by the PPC at the time of
  land acquisition were temporarily applied by the local land acquisition units
- The applicable temporary compensation rate is agreed affected households
- **Step 2:** Updating and adjustment of the replacement cost.

#### **Residential lands:**

- Refer to the applicable replacement cost on compensation for residential land in dated December 27, 2014 of Ha Tinh PPC on land price in Ha Tinh province, land adjustment s were referred by the Consultant for assessment and adjustment of the replacement costs
- Survey on transaction price, offer price for land lots at similar positions near the project area. It is estimated that the price of land in affected area is followed the resettlement plan approved by local authorities
  - According to existing regulations, any land lot acquired by the State for any
    reason will be compensated by a new land with same land use purpose (provide
    new land or land in resettlement area), if no land is available for compensation, it
    will be compensated with the rate equal to the acquired land at the time of
    acquisition.
  - In addition to compensation, relocated people will be subjected to other support policies: subsistence and production; vocational training, job changes; resettlement support, etc
  - Households with land acquisition will be compensated at replacement cost and entitled to full policies under existing local regulations. However, upon specific

conditions and demand of households who have land acquired, determination of replacement cost for the land must take resettlement plan into account

- Replacement cost survey = Surveyed cost (\*) Difference of relocated land price (\*\*)
  - (\*): Survey cost is the result of survey on commonly residential land price at acquisition location
  - (\*\*): Difference of relocated land price: Market price of relocated land Relocated land price regulated by Ha Tinh province
- By comparison of the compensation rate surveyed, adjustment and updating of existing rate that is applicable in Ha Tinh province, a replacement cost for assets that is suitable with current status and common rate of the province was proposed by the Consultant.

## **Agricultural Land:**

- Based on replacement cost for agricultural land applicable for compensation in dated December 27, 2014 of Ha Tinh PPC on land price in Ha Tinh province, the Consultant has referred to the land price adjustment factor to make assessment and adjustment of replacement costs;
- Survey on data about income, costs related to planting of annual/perennial trees, rice, etc. and value of agricultural land through capitalization process.

Agricultural land price	_	Average net income in a year		
	=	Average interest rate in a year (12-month term)		
Net income within the year	=	(Average income in a year - Expenditure in a year)		

- For annual crop land: Net income within a year of a land lot is identified based on the average income and expenditures for production and business of the land within 03 consecutive years at the time of price appraisal.
- For perennial land and productive forest land, average income per year is calculated based on annual revenue, periodical revenue and one-time revenue
- If income of the land lot is unable for determination, it shall identify average income of at least 03 land lots which are similar to land use right, position, profitability, socioeconomic conditions, area, shape land legal title as well as actual information and data collected on the market.
- (\*) Average interest rate per year (r) within 03 consecutive years at the time of land appraisal by VND currency with 12-month terms at the provincial state commercial bank with the highest interest rate (at the time of land pricing). Average interest rates in 2015, 2016, 2017 was: 6.0%, 5.5% and 6.6%. Thus, estimated average interest rate of 03 consecutive years is 6.0%/year.

By comparison of updated rate which is adjusted in line with applicable compensated rate in Ha Tinh province, the Consultant has proposed a replacement cost for assets that is suitable with current status and compensation rate in the Province

#### **House and Structures:**

- Based on replacement rate for house and structures in Ha Tinh province. dated January 20, 2017 of Ha Tinh PPC on compensation rate on houses, structures, boats, equipment, machine, agricultural and fishery tools, trees, crops and aquaculture" when the State acquires land in Ha Tinh province, the Consultant has referred the construction price index published monthly and quarterly by Department of Construction or related consumption price index (CPI) to assess and adjust the replacement cost.
- The survey of construction unit price for house and structures on the market. Information collected from market survey, consultation with contractors on construction of house. On the basis, replacement cost for affected assets has not been stipulated. By comparison of updated rate which is adjusted in line with applicable compensated rate in Ha Tinh province, the Consultant has proposed a replacement cost for assets that is suitable with current status and compensation rate in the Province

#### **Trees and crops:**

- Based on replacement cost for trees and crops applied in Ha Tinh province dated January 20, 2017 of Ha Tinh PPC on compensation rate on houses, structures, boats, equipment, machine, agricultural and fishery tools, trees, crops and aquaculture" when the State acquires land in Ha Tinh province, related CPI was referred to by the Consultant to assess and adjust the replacement cost.
- Survey of market price for crops and trees. Information is mainly collected from market survey, consultation with tree and crop buyers and sellers. On this basis, replacement cost for affected assets has not be regulated yet.
- By comparison of updated rate which is adjusted in line with applicable compensated rate in Ha Tinh province, the Consultant has proposed a replacement cost for assets that is suitable with current status and compensation rate in the Province

#### d) Result of RCS and Estimate Cost

- 6. Through consultations with local people, there was almost no residential land transaction in the area and agricultural productivity was very low in such area due to remoted area and/or downgraded infrastructure provided. Therefore, in the process of preparing the RAP, initial assessment of provincial rates for land, structures, trees have been carried out by checking productivity for productive land; comparing with market prices for structures, crop and trees and seeking household perceptions of market rates. As results, the provincial proposed rates are assessed basically equivalent to market prices, and acceptable to local affected people. So during the RAP preparation, the provincial rate is proposed to apply for calculating compensation cost. During implementation phase, more detailed replacement cost survey will be carried out to update this compensation rates, and will be served as basis for compensation and assistances
- 7. For detailed summary of cost estimate for compensation and assistances, please see Table 1 belowed.
- 8. Decisions issued by Ha Tinh province related to compensation, assistance and resettlement policies applied for preparation of the RAP include:
  - Decision No.75/2014/QD-UBND dated November 03, 2014 of Ha Tinh PPC on compensation, assistance and resettlement policies when the State acquires land in Ha Tinh province.
  - Decision No.03/2018/QD-UBND dated January 20, 2017 of Ha Tinh PPC on compensation rate on houses, structures, boats, equipment, machine, agricultural and fishery tools, trees, crops and aquaculture" when the State acquires land in Ha Tinh province.
  - Decision No.94/2014/QD-UBND dated December 27, 2014 of Ha Tinh PPC on 2015 land price in Ha Tinh province

Table 1: Cost estimate for RAP implementation

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
I	LOI DONG RESERVOIR					
1.1	Land				147,083,968	6,479.47

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
	Residential Land	m2	957.55	100,000	95,755,000	4,218.28
	Production forest	m2	4,740	5,000	23,701,900	1,044.14
	Agricultural productionLand	<i>m</i> 2	781	20,528	16,032,368	706.27
	Aquaculture land	m2	991	11,700	11,594,700	510.78
1.2	Structures	m2			112,534,000	4,957.44
	Fences	<i>m</i> 2	178	196,000	45,864,000	2,020.44
	Yards	<i>m</i> 2	121	120,000	14,520,000	639.65
	Barns	<i>m</i> 2	70	745,000	52,150,000	2,297.36
1.3	Compensation for crops, trees		0		-	
	Forest trees (Melaleuca, Eucalyptus, neem, willow, etc.)	Tree	-		20,492,200	902.74
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	891	13,900	12,384,900	545.59
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	391	15,500	6,060,500	266.98
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm		57	18,000	1,026,000	45.20
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	38	21,600	820,800	36.16
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	2	100,000	200,000	8.81
1.4	Assistance				61,699,000	2,718.02
	Assistance in job training, job change	m2	781	69,000	53,889,000	2,373.96
	Assistance in living subsidence	m2	781	10,000	7,810,000	344.05
1.5	Support vulnerable HHs	HHs	3		6,000,000	264.32
	Poor households (including EM people)	HHs	2	2,000,000	4,000,000	176.21
	Women-headed households with dependents	HHs	1	2,000,000	2,000,000	88.11
1.6	Total				347,809,168	15,321.99
II	NUOC XANH RESERVOIR					
2.1	Land	m2			26,141,888	1,151.63
	Production forest	<i>m</i> 2	2,527	4,000	10,109,520	445.35
	Agricultural Land	<i>m</i> 2	781	20,528	16,032,368	706.27
2.2	Compensation for crops, trees		0		17,459,200	769.13
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	221	13,900	5,851,900	257.79

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	391	15,500	2,960,500	130.42
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	115	18,000	2,070,000	91.19
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	23	21,600	496,800	21.89
	Cash crops	m2	200	30,400	6,080,000	267.84
2.4	Livelihood assistance				61,699,000	2,718.02
	Assistance in living subsidence		781	10,000	7,810,000	344.05
	Assistance in job training, job change		781	69,000	53,889,000	2,373.96
2.5	Support vulnerable HHs		2		4,000,000	176.21
	Poor households (including EM people)		2	2,000,000	4,000,000	176.21
2.6	Total				109,300,088	4,814.98
III	BA KHE RESERVOIR		1		, , ,	
3.1	Land				79,765,482	3,513.90
	Production forest	m2	3,614	4,000	14,456,000	636.83
	Agricultural production Land	<i>m</i> 2	3,438	16,690	57,376,882	2,527.62
	Aquaculture land	m2	678	11,700	7,932,600	349.45
2.0	Compensation for crops,			r	4.7.407.400	<00 A T
3.2	trees		0		15,487,100	682.25
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	710	13,900	9,869,000	434.76
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	123	15,500	1,906,500	83.99
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	131	18,000	2,358,000	103.88
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	56	21,600	1,209,600	53.29
	Diameter of over 15 cm	Tree	6	24,000	144,000	6.34
3.3	Assistance				271,586,200	11,964.15
	Assistance in job training, job change		3,438	69,000	237,208,200	10,449.70
	Assistance in living subsidence	HHs	3,438	10,000	34,378,000	1,514.45
3.4	Support vulnerable HHs	HHs			8,000,000	352.42
	Poor households (including EM people)	HHs	3	2,000,000	6,000,000	264.32
	Women-headed households with dependants	HHs	1	2,000,000	2,000,000	88.11
3.5	Total				374,838,782	16,512.72
IV	DAP BUOM RESERVOIR					

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
4.1	Land				61,127,100	2,692.82
	Residential Land	<i>m</i> 2	411	140,000	57,540,000	2,534.80
	Production forest	<i>m</i> 2	4,658	3,300	15,371,400	677.15
4.2	Structures				122,125,000	5,379.96
	Yards	m2	43	120,000	5,160,000	227.31
	Barns	<i>m</i> 2	157	745,000	116,965,000	5,152.64
4.3	Compensation for crops, trees		0		27,669,800	1,218.93
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	113	13,900	1,570,700	69.19
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	321	15,500	4,975,500	219.19
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	147	18,000	2,646,000	116.56
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	36	21,600	777.600	34.26
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	12	100,000	1,200,000	52.86
	Orange	Tree	150	60,000	9,000,000	396.48
	Tea trees	Tree	50	150,000	7,500,000	330.40
4.4	Support vulnerable HHs	HHs	2		5,000,000	220.26
	Policy households	HHs	1	3,000,000	3,000,000	132.16
	Elderly households	HHs	1	2,000,000	2,000,000	88.11
4.5	Total				274,136,360	12,076.49
V	KHE CO RESERVOIR		1		1	
5.1	Land				117,399,500	5,171.78
	Production forest	<i>m</i> 2	12,461	3,300	41,121,300	1,811.51
	Agricultural Land	<i>m</i> 2	344	23,300	8,015,200	353.09
	Aquaculture land	<i>m</i> 2	767	89,000	68,263,000	3,007.18
5.2	Compensation for crops, trees				25,270,200	1,113.22
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	559	13,900	7,770,100	342.30
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	491	15,500	7,610,500	335.26
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	208	18,000	3,744,000	164.93
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	141	21,600	3,045,600	134.17
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	31	100,000	3,100,000	136.56
5.3	Assistance in living subsidence				27,176,000	1,197.18
	Assistance in job training, job change		344	69,000	23,736,000	1,045.64
	Assistance in living subsidence	HHs	344	10,000	3,440,000	151.54

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
5.4	Support vulnerable HHs	HHs	2		4,000,000	176.21
	Women-headed households	HHs	2	2,000,000	4,000,000	176.21
	with dependants	11115		2,000,000	, ,	
5.5	Total				173,845,700	7,658.40
VI	KHE NHAY RESERVOIR		_			
6.1	Land				35,913,300	6,722.37
	Production forest	m2	1,890	3,300	6,237,000	274.76
	Agricultural production Land	<i>m</i> 2	1,189	23,200	27,584,800	1,215.19
	Aquaculture land	<i>m</i> 2	235	8,900	2,091,500	92.14
6.2	Compensation for crops, trees				10,470,800	461.27
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	273	13,900	3,794,700	167.17
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	111	15,500	1,720,500	75.79
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	105	18,000	1,890,000	83.26
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	91	21,600	1,965,600	86.59
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	11	100,000	1,100,000	48.46
6.3	Assistance				93,931,000	4,137.93
	Assistance in job training, job change		1,189	69,000	82,041,000	3,614.14
	Assistance in living subsidence	HHs	1,189	10,000	11,890,000	523.79
6.4	Support vulnerable HHs	HHs			2,000,000	88.11
	Women-headed households with dependants	HHs	1	2,000,000	2,000,000	88.11
6.5	Total				142,315,100	6,269.39
VII	KHE DE RESERVOIR			<u> </u>	, ,	
7.1	Land	m2			43,711,900	1,925.63
	Residential Land	m2	218	75,000	16,350,000	720.26
	Production forest	m2	4,699	3,300	15,506,700	683.11
	Agricultural production Land	<i>m</i> 2	511	23,200	11,855,200	522.26
7.2	Compensation for crops, trees	3	•		30,079,000	
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	491	13,900	9,604,900	423.12
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	441	15,500	3,735,500	164.56
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	296	18,000	5,328,000	234.71
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	236	21,600	5,097,600	224.56
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	11	100,000	1,100,000	48.46

No.	Items	Unit	m3	Unit price	VND	USD
7.3	Structures					
	Yards	<i>m</i> 2	21	120,000	2,520,000	111.01
	Barns	m2	89	754,000	67,106,000	2,956.21
7.4	Vegetables	m2	210	23,300	4,893,000	215.55
	Fruit trees		1		385,840,000	
	Orange	Tree	600	600,000	360,000,000	15,859.03
	Tamarind	Tree	120	150,000	18,000,000	792.95
	Jack fruit	Tree	6	400,000	2,400,000	105.73
	Tea tree	Tree	340	16,000	5,440,000	239.65
7.5	Assistance				40,369,000	1,778.37
	Assistance in job training, job		511	69,000	35,259,000	1,553.26
	change		311	02,000	33,237,000	1,333.20
	Assistance in living		511	10,000	5,110,000	225.11
	subsidence		311	10,000	, ,	
7.6	Total				569,305,900	25,079.56
VIII	DA DEN RESERVOIR			1		
8.1	Land				16,219,700	714.52
	Production forest		3,634	3,300	11,992,200	528.29
	Aquaculture land	m2	475	8,900	4,227,500	186.23
8.2	Compensation for trees				15,296,700	673.86
	Diameter of 2 - 4 cm	Tree	198	13,900	2,752,200	121.24
	Diameter of 4 - 6 cm	Tree	487	15,500	7,548,500	332.53
	Diameter of 6 - 9 cm	Tree	206	18,000	3,708,000	163.35
	Diameter of 9 - 15 cm	Tree	55	21,600	1,188,000	52.33
	Diameter of 30 - 35 cm	Tree	1	100,000	100,000	4.41
8.3	Support vulnerable HHs				3,000,000	132.16
	Policy households		1	3,000,000	3,000,000	132.16
8.4	Total				34,516,400	1,520.55

<sup>9.</sup> In sum, Cost estimate for implementation of RAP for first subproject in Ha Tinh province is 2,275,354,800 VNĐ (equivalent to US\$ 100,235.89), exclusive of other associated costs for income restoration program, temporary impacts (if any).

# Annex 2: Minutes of public consultation in project wards/communes

1. Huong Tho commune - Vu Quang district

# CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc ------

## DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bắt dầu: 14. h. 9.0... ngày... Số... tháng... S.... năm 2018 Kết thúc: 16. h. 10... ngày... 30... tháng... S.... năm 2018 Dịa điểm: Xố. Thường... Họ. T. Muyên Vac Quang...

STT	Họ và tên	Dịa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chù
4	Day Von Phis	Thon 1.	Ola	
2	Nguyễn Vhn Xuan	11	xuñn	
3	Than thur Dang	(r	000	
A	the this Luisney	Lt.	ludrig	
5	Nguyễn Thị Hành	16	allanh	
G	Nguyễn Vo Thinh	Thon 3	thela	
7.	Le Quang Chair	From 1	No2-	
	Tean The Minh	CY	2002	
9	Cham Thi Vinh	6	Vine	100-100
do	Mayen Von Anh	n	anh	
М.	Naman Viet Darg	fr	D Fry	
12	Coo Xunn Bunh	0.0	Birli	
43	Nguyễn Von Hoan	Phan s	Hoan	
	Phan thi + myari	Thion 1	Hugh	
46	Train Van Anh	Thon 1	B	
16	Nguyễn Thi Mai	W	Allow	
JŦ	Nguyễn Việt Pung	9.	Reg :	-
18	Phown Xuon Quang	1.1	1 String	
19	the Ranh Lean	(10)	Clour	
20	Ban Die Hai	11	1 7 91	



-5		=	
	14	1	
		-	
	-	-	
	-33	35	
	y	~	
	100		
	134		
. *		100	
		. 57	
1	40.0	3	
	-	-	4
10			ď.
P			-
-	-	_	9
Э.		Ar.	
		T= :	-

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	le Teong thong	Prior 1	the	
22	the Die Marih	4	1 Ahul	
23	Cao Xuan Vinh	η.	Cent	
24	Tean Van Dung	. "	Bry	
25	le Quang Chinh	"	Rally	
26	Nguyễn thoàng Anh	•	Ad	
27	Nguyễn Định Kỳ	é tr	Kir	211
28	Ran Phi hai	Phon 3	Color	
29	Le Thank Tien	Phon 3	Jul .	
30	le Mai Pho	, n	This	
31	Tean Thi Min	- h	Mhu	
32	thoung Mayon Thing That	ng 11	Calid	
3.3	Ran li Mij	41	My 8	
34	Myen Manh Ding	Į(	PACH	
55	Nguyễn thứng Cương	PCT LIBNO		
36	Nguyễn Sơn Criang	Dia Chush	ja	
37	Nguồn Phi Hanh	TT PRon 1.	Inhold-	
38	Vo Phi Dhu	CT their Phy Not	- Herry	
39	Iran Thi Philong	CT this Mong Dan	plug	
AO	Ran Thi Lan	ME-TT	1 cm	
A-A	Ngyen Acri Nam	M = CS	Mar	
HR	Diding Quot thing	VP - TIC.	Muy	a 1
43	Nguin Karkinh	VP-UB.	JAS	
	0.7/M		0	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chĩ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
			-	
-				
_				
-33		- X		
				100
				<del></del>



per sul

Myayênî Hing Cdê J

#### CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỢP THAM VẬN CỘNG ĐỜNG DÂN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: Dự an sửa chữa và nang cao an tran đã
Địa diễm thực hiện dự án:xáthường. Tha
Thời gian họp: 2 <sup>R</sup> 301312018 Dịa chỉ nơi họp: Xá Hướng Thọ
Dia chi noi hop: Xá Hướng Tho
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Đại diện UBND xã (phường)
1). Nguyễn Hưng Tường Chức vụ: Phó Chích MAND.
1.2. Đại diện chũ dự án:
1)
2)
1.4. Đại điện đơn vị tư vấn:
1). Pham Son Tung Chire vu Chuyen gia
2). Mush The Ra My Chirc vu: Chuyen gua
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường)HướngPho, các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường):HướngPho
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.1. Ông/Bà: "MannShTungchủ trì cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp và giới thiệu thành phần tham dụ.
II.2. Ông/Bà:
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo tuận của cộng đồng dân cư Mông nuyến nàng ccip hiệ Đấp buồm (nam trong 15 hiệ chiệ xuông ccip nghiêm trong có tinh tho Tinh)



trà dhưng san xuất cuố người dan Vị thể ươn có phương dọ được bài bài lượng dọi bài bài lướng quan tiếp lướng cây lài năm cam bươn gọi tế phát trười Neư dước họ trệ nhan dại san sẽ quảm tới việi ti anh bương muốn lưẽ bèi thì có chủ trười sung muốn lưẽ bèi thì cong cong trười. Mong muốn tha cong sốn lài trà địc thì mang muốn lưẽ bèi thì cong cong trười. Mong muốn tha cong sốn lài thì dei thì trà dei thì trà địc trà được sốn lài trà dein bù hoệ lý.
philoso do des bu lu tre pho phuisa hi di
anh bulgar anga tien
vito tran đặc Mi có tượng câu laŭ nam cam
hiter go to shot suit Neg duit his the show dain
se agan fot vice to anh huma
Khi co chu teurona thi mora mun lie ter thi
cora coño tevil Mono muno the coño són
Val de dein bis quai ton deis on he so chi trà
neis can lister chi tra ton but has les
V of the only belong deep on west aproposition
Vi sá thể cính hường đến san xuất rung nghiệp. Hu can có sự lữ trẻ cho người dan
Anh Sulong Leis mis Levilong Consular Shar Sul,
## 121 1 IP ID 0 0 IP 70 P 71 I 0 #7 -
such last hour year Vi the coin string being
in the national thing to the top-
Police of a floor of any of the of the of
to those & that our of the difference of the dif
such had hang year the curh mung ten altrising such has been been their stang.  Such had hang year their to the ten ten their than their thank to must be such the thank thank thank though their grain one dung think 1-6; I during that
De gran thier tou tury the chon that gran of the
Dr robi the grain cat wish also has he strong so with
Pulsar trul ties des As some maris des
At nahi tain kan shot Risha and temb
De right the grain eat mice strai her by khong se with busing truit ties den atte sing người dans.  The right atom sow white thing come temb
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
***************************************
,

b. Ý kiến phản hồi của chủ đầu tư
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết thúc cuộc họp
- Những nội dung tán thành:
- Nhưng họi dùng tinh thành: - Nhàt dù tan thành: thuộ hiện thì song hà đạ? - Dam ban shát duống song tunh:
- tan box shat living song turiti
0 0
<ul> <li>Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý (nếu có):</li> </ul>
Biến bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Dự án: Sướn chuồ và hong cau an troin đấp tunh Hà Tinh (WBS)
kết thức lúc 5 th 30 /3/dlal
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường), M. May, "Chia" ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
xa(phaeang), w. based, seat
13/10 Del
9-1
8 6 W Grand Grand
Sugar Stary Glong

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VÂN

## 2. Ky Bac commune - Ky Anh district

#### CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc -----80C8-----

## DANH SÁCH ĐẠI ĐIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bắt đầu: 7... h. 39.. ngày. 28.. tháng...3... năm 2018

Kết thúc: 11.. h. 00.. ngày. 28.. tháng... 7... năm 2018

Địa điểm: Xố... Ng. box.

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ kỷ	Ghi chú
X	lé la lý	Ya Ka Bail	Ly	
2	Mayor Von Pluc	//	solu	
3	Nguyão Thi Ninh	11	Nie	
4	Muyan Thi Tam		Cam	
5	Hoang This Lam	1/	2-am	
6	Nguen Die Du	ii .	- Frit	
3	Nguyễn Thị liệu	W.	Lieu	
8	the Anh Hung	u	othina	
9	Vô Phi lan	В	Thing Lan	
10	Nguyễn Teò		7. e3	
	That Van aing	ti .	Cally -	
	Houng Kim Thank	1	thank	
	Nguyễn thi Toan	*	1 days	
	Nguyễn Von Thia	le	this-	
12	Noyen What Thank	ō	rua	
16	Phan Anh Dong	0	Dy.	
17	Ngyễn Thi Dường	te.	D 43-1	
18	Vố Tren Hiệu	- 4	Hier	
	Horing Van 100	ħ	10	
80	Le Xuan Burt	.0	20	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	Vố Van Quyết	10	Fugit	
22	Than Vais Khoai	.11	Thora	
23	le Nga Son	te.	· Sân	
24	Ho Xian Lac	ц — —	-lae	
25	le Van Phanh	tı	Thanh	
26	Nguyễn Phi Thanh	H	Phanh	
2Ŧ	Phung Van Char	W	. accord	
28	Nguyễn Quốc Hoa	ħ	. Starte	2
29	Ngyãn Phi Haci	- 6	400	
30	Ho Thi Tam	W	Gamp	
	thoung Ngac Hail	ħ	1. Cen	
32	Nguyễn trush Tử	tr	Tu	
	Phan Xuan Khyon	.6	Klyngs	
	Ngyến Thi Thường	и	Time	
	Honing Van Ngo	V	1/02	
6	Vã Tiền Chung	Ara Chink	JAChe!	
F	Chang thi Hoa Ly	Van phong	Plan	
	Bir Phi tlanh	Circh this phy not	Bottal	
	Nguyễn Von Lý	Van Roa	Jolly .	
	Phan Dunh Tung	ezrefi Hoj ND	Milly 1	
y ·	Tean the Philosophigo	Ob Chinh such	Author	
		An Chunk XO	HHa	
13	Agusin The Twh Ta	Chi taik UBND	C 1700	
	0	*		

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
	1000			
- 1				
- 12				
				1
				2
_				

Ngày tháng năm 2018

Xác nhân cha nha phương
CHU TICH

Ngô Đức Chọ

LULLIO

#### CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

## BIÊN BẢN HỢP THAM VẬN CỘNG ĐỒNG DẬN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỔI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: Dù an sửa chứa và nãng cao an ban đấp MBl
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án: USNO, xơ, Nỹ Bắc
Thời gian hợp: 7430 - 28/05/2018
Dia chi noi hop: UENO XX Ky. Bac
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Đại điện UBND xã (phường). Kỳ Bai - huyên Kỳ Arsh 1) Ngô Đứ Pho Chức vụ Chú lich UBND 2) Vô Tiện Chura Chức vụ Được chính
2). Vô Tiền Chưng. Chức vụ: Được chunh.
1)
2)
1.4. Đại diện dơn vị tư vấn:  1) Mho mà Soh Tược Chức vụ: Chuyển gia  2) Dại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMITQ xã (phường). Ly ba ti các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường). Ly bac.  11. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp  11.1. Ông/Bà: Mga Mu Tha chủ trì cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp và giới thiệu thành phần tham dự.
II.2. Ông/Bà: Thư Nư. Tha Mu trình bày tóm tắt tác động mỗi trường của dự án gồm các nội dung của dự án, các tác động tích cực và tiêu cực của dự án đến mỗi trường và sức khỏe cộng đồng, các biện pháp giảm thiểu.
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp a. Ý kiến thảo luận của cộng đồng dân cư Nang cấp và cay kac cuy trans hệ chức họ thu Qua trình chai đại nương tưởn bị thu họi đại thu thế não Nên đein bụ than dang sha ngườ

Day Sa core trush che va Ku Bay Suitra los Una
-bay ha cong trunh cho xa Ky Bai huing loi Ung
Whiling too doing tich cui se many lai mite cung
cong st gay anh huiong nhu trui gay tiếng on
in si gay mat with tam their trong and trink ray
dung mat an tran trad hi xa hor this
có noum cono whan the not blog ten.
De nohi thos man turen xe have his li
grann Aren and Lucing stein stor song lan how our
naur dan
Than dan co the chin and hing den mon turne
vain chuyen the new of both ohe xe wid min grain.
Anh Ruising ten musi mu (Imus) - Hang mus
Anh huong den muse me (Imus) - Hang mus.  Mais cain thi cong tuiles bang muse now cain  the work son de man their wei and buing
THE PERSON AND ADDRESS OF THE PERSON ADDRESS OF THE PERSON AND ADDRESS OF THE PERSON ADDRE
And rust
the wat in med mile sinh hood said know them was much
the whole be much much such broad some know them mad an
train living their
- d

b. Ý kiến phần hỗi của chủ đầu tư Se' thuy hiện theo church xoch cuả như nước và đạp lưng như cai church đơng của các hệ dair
wa day ung mu eau chunh dang cua car thi dan
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết thúc cuộc họp
- Những nội dung tán thành:
- What tel wig his their hier dir and
<ul> <li>Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý (nếu có):</li> </ul>
- Whang not dung con co y kien chaa dong y (nea co).
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Dự án: Rui an sia chuế và
kết thúc lúc 11 4 28 03.7. 2018.
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.
1401 dung bien ban da duộc dọc lại cho mội người cũng nghiệ và mong qua y kiến.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường) VÝ TAN HÀN BẦN ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
Ngô Dia Thọ

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TỬ VÂN

24

## 3. Ky Phong commune - Ky Anh district

MITIE

#### CONG HÒA XÃ HỌI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỢP THAM VẪN CỘNG ĐỜNG DẬN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Ten du an Dr. an Sig eluca Va raig cap an toan day tinh
Ha link, (WB7)
Dia diem thực hiện dự án: Ly Lan . akô kin Xã Ky Phong
Thời gian họp:
Dia chi noi hop: Afoi treleg low 118th Xo Ker phong:
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Đại diện UBND xã (phường)
1.1. Dại diện UBND xã (phường) Let phong 1). No Giên Elacel Chir vu Chef trọch (1811) Xa
2) Noj Van Ven Chire vu pleher Fich usnn Xa
1.2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
1)
2)Chức vụ:
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
1) Nguyên Gucin Anh Chức vụ:
2)
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phương), các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phương)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.I. Ông/Bà: Maeuje a. Van Venchủ trì cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp và giới thiệu thành phần tham dụ.
II.2. Ông/Bà: Mogetyë to Man. Atah trình bày tóm tắt tác động môi trường của dự án gồm các nội dung của dự án, các tác động tích cực và tiêu cực của dự án đến mỗi trường và sức khỏe cộng đồng, các biện pháp giảm thiểu.
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Úy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bảy tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo tuận của cộng đồng dân cư 1. Điợi Với Điện Độ, - ST. Chủ họi - Bôn Leich Với Được dàn - Thuy nhiên Đế cánh, hiệng đến 1881 họi dân, nhưng Đế được hưởi, Lor schoong 400 họi - Nêu hò nước Xanh sei Sưa nàng Cấp Thủ cũn, họi họi may

her treu cho dien du 8.00 9. .elca. N.CHY)

b. Ý kiến phản hồi của chủ đầy tư 1. Ogy. Nogley à Tough Anh. b	and die chil the tes
Alen Alex eac of Kien ella	ba con Va hela De co,
Me hoad loto wier vor	See stay to the steen hard
- Se ee he two she nhing	he lei and heer play has vo
- Trung lue tiep hour Hi ce	
	ên, Si han lhê Têr đo sen
3. Người chũ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết th	úc cuộc họp
- Những nội dung tán thành:	Cap Dap never Xanh
- They what Cao you can't - Se eo ho ho eso while he - guy all eero who need vo	. A. G. G. M. ylallely . y. hallely . V. O.S.
<ul> <li>Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý</li> </ul>	
+ Chareo	***************************************
	***************************************
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Di	ự án:
két thúc lúc 20 geo. ngay 28. Hogy	3. reim 2018.
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mội	người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ	
xā(phường). Ky. Phong	ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
1676233	

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VẨN

Nguyễn Tvan Anti

Vo Bien Bhach

MITO

# CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

## DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bắt đầu: 7... h.. 30... ngày. 28... tháng. 3..... năm 2018 Kết thúc: 10.. h... £à.. ngày. 28... tháng. .. 3..... năm 2018

Dia diem: 110 IT Roug. 80' 1 UBVO XO ley phong.

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
,	Vo Tien Thack	CT. UND	Oddlo/	-
2	Nguyễn Yan yên	pa. your	1 500	
3	Ngy in xuanthing	CI. MITA	W lus	-
4	Hoang The Lien	CT. HPN.	HU	
5	Nguyen Har Thank	CT. HND -	Chal	-
6	Yo Yan Tay.	Die chirk	<b>*</b>	
	1 1 11	PO. MITA.	They	
	Tran Yan Duan	BT che by Any So	· Oder	
9	Trans The Tog	TT. Then Hong Sin-	264	
10	Vo TiEn 80'	BT-chy bac Son	1158	-
11.	Duking Das Nghio	THE Then Bac Sin -	Dard	
12.	Ngujen Noc phei	BI Then Nam plang	Gorpl	
13	LE Van Johen	IT Then Nampley	Taxo	
14	Vo Jun Mins	IP Theodor Think	- Fleur	l
26	Tran Mink LE	Then Bac sin	18	
16	Trần Văn 80	Then Nam play	Eve	
17	organis The Ha	Then Man play	ta	
18	Vo The chair	Then that Son	Chou	
19	Trêus Vais CU	Then Manpley	Jo5	
20	Vo Tren Dan	This Doy think	Dara	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chi/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	Ngyan The Lan	Bai Son	Con	
22	My yen Jun chan	bec son	ofnh	
25	Yo Trus Hai	Bae oib	18	
24	Men Van Duan	Then Alig 8pm	pun	
25	Nejwan Yest Lan	Dog Sin	Can	
26	yo Trus Ly	page son	Lý	
27	Tron The The	Arig 80%	Ho!	
28	Trên Van Ceig.	Nam plones	6-	
29	João The Hair	VP US	Chu 2	
30	Ng uyên Wasan Ludig	The Bac Sin	Thurs	
31.	Organis van plu	TT Doing Think	Shot	
32	Nguyên Xuan Yen	i,	yez-	
35	Haray Van Chulan	4	ane	
34	Vo Trên Minh	fr.	flul	
25	Ng Thi Hadag	t.	Muls-	
46	No Nigoca Huyan	r(I	Chry	
37	LE Xuan Phil	ty	Brosp	100
28	Hoàng The Hung	Ц	Rhu	100
29	Phon Van Midis	-t	Main	
40	Neugan - Dish Tol	9	Phé	
41	Le Votri Kladi	Ç!	Klen	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
_				
		P.		
35				
				<del></del>
- 4				
			1	
unio esc				
9				
-				
			1	

Xác nhận của địa phương

31

## 4. Ky Thinh Ward - Ky Anh township

LIBND

#### CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc ------ROG2-----

## DANII SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gi	an:
	Bất đầu: 7 h. 3.0 ngày. &9tháng 3 năm 2018
	Kết thức: 14 h 242 ngày 29 tháng 3 năm 2018
Dịa điể	m. Philog Ky Thirth - The xo Ky Anh

STT	Họ và tên	Dia chi/chire vu	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
1	During Durch Quyet	TDP Tay You.	Da Colot	
	problem of the second	9	6	
2	Nayon this Que	TOP TOT YER	Of the	
3	Ngyan Thi Thanh	ir.	Mul	
A	Neyan Uhn Che	10	Che	
5	Ngyan Thi Thanh Ngyan Vhin Cho' Ngyan Thanh Tho' Duking Van Dia	A+	lhe	
G	Du Was Dis	i <sub>r</sub>	Talue -	
12	valency with the		- Crie	
-				
- /				
/				

STT	Họ và tên	Dja chi/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
_		N		
		1		
-				
_			1	
			The second second	
			-	

le Thos Ngày 29 tháng 3 năm 2018 Xác nhận của địa phương

Là Văn Bình

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
	<del></del>			
- 3				
_				
_				
-				

Cy Third Ngày . 2.9 ... tháng ... 3 .... năm 2018 Xác nhận của địa phương

Lê Văn Binh

2. URNO

Thời gian:

#### CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc ------8008-----

## DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

т	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
	le Van Bunh	Phó Chủ tich		
1	ē Xuan Cá	Chi tich MITQ	Mar-	
	i long thuyen	this tick HOND	Atun 1	
1	byen Van Tra	W-The	John	
1	Yougen Tien Dair	-Dio Chint	Mun	
	Lévery Hué	ciceB	1 Thu	A
			/	
	/			
1				
				é
-				

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỌP THAM VÁN CỘNG ĐÔNG DÂN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

N V V
Tên dự án: Du an sua chúa và nàng cao an toàn đâ
tich the Tunk (MB8)
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án: !kường Ky Thunh
Thời gian họp: 7 <sup>h</sup> 30 29/3/2018
Dia chỉ nơi họp: US ND. Phướng Ky. Phinh.
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Dại diện UBND xã (phường) Nhương Kỳ Rhinh
1) le Van Burh Chức vụ Phố chủ tích UBNO
2)
1.2. Đại điện chủ dự án:
1)
2)Chức vụ:
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
1). Pharm Son Tung Chức vụ: Chuyển gia
2) Thinh Thi Ra My Chức vụ: Chuyen giá
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường). Kỹ Bunh, các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.1. Ông/Bà: Lhoun Son Tung chủ trì cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp và giới thiệu thành phần tham dự.
II.2. Ông/Bà: "Phowa. Sch. Tung trình bày tóm tắt tác động môi trường của dự án gồm các nội dung của dự án, các tác động tích cực và tiêu cực của dự án đến môi trường và sức khỏe cộng đồng, các biện pháp giảm thiểu.
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thào luận của cộng đồng dân cư Một số anh hướng Ninh viên và anh hướng tam thời chia tha ra như mặt chiến tư h đất nong nghiệp, côy cái hoa mau nhia của suovig

cin de nghi gram thier do for dang ou dink ou rung the light co philling can dein by thoa stong the ingilion alour Eli thi cong cair es whiting an gram thier như xo chay theo giá ( it gất anh thường cho người dan 2; sai nua tai oluang thicong de grain bui, Thoughow tentes to ingula dain the free bout ray dung va the hoi

b. Ý kiến phản hồi của chủ đầu tư
·
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết thúc cuộc họp
- Những nội dung tán thành:  Thom Thoul Coli Cuc y liên Là Thao lunn Cou car thous.  Thom Thom gire Constitui Cory new Co phat Sinh nhưng lung.  Church Leibhy wier, Art. Subry Lie hà don Se han box Thô nhất xi g  Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý (nếu có):
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Dự án:
kết thúc lúc
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.

ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường).../Cq...7.fal.....

ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ

Lê Van Rinh

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VẨN

# 5. Ky Trinh Ward - Ky Anh township

WEND

# CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

### DANH SÁCH ĐẠI ĐIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời g	an:
- 27	Bắt đầu: 74. h ngày
1	Kết thúc: 4 h ngày dF tháng 3 năm 2018
Địa điể	m: HT WEND Phung Ky TRU

STT	Họ và tên	Dja chi/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
1	TREM văn Chât	TOP Cha Loc	last	
2	chu văn Lile		Luce	
3	Na Chan Lac	ų	01/4	
4	Tring ling think	ü	And	
5)	TRin Thi Chin	ч	Then	
6	le chi Ang	ų	STA	
ħ	TRûn Xuân Khal	y	yehans	
8)	Le Owny Thyml	D.	Leady	-
9	TRais Pray Sy	4	GT.	
10	This xwan this +	4	"Uso	
M	TRain Xuan Thing.	4	flup	
12	Na Pai 26a V	स	V MALT	
13	Thur Mai Sien	¥	Liens	
14	Than van Hic	٧	the	
15	No Disk chat	п	Menn	
16	No Thi Show Hai	u	1 the	
H	Ng Trèn Quay	ď	- Kons	
18	Neugen Him Thank "	u		
19	No Thi Ngoe	V	The	-
20	Le Oray Ching	۴	Wood	

Họ và tên Dja chỉ/chức vụ Chữ ký Ghi chú STT 11 Vom W. 17 24 11 lan 25 Sang 11 26 ij 27 Van 28 TRain Xuan King 29 30 q 31 ŋ. 32 1)PTK 33 Van Hea 36. Valuer Bitl Tien Quan Hoi San

40

TT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
_			-	
_				
				1100 1100 1100
-				
+				
+				
_				*
			1	

Ngày 37 tháng 3 năm 2018 Xác nhận của địa phương

Nguyễn Tơi Hà

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẮN HỌP THAM VẮN CỘNG ĐỒNG DẦN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: Dư an Sưa chua và nang ao an loan dạp
tich Ha Nich CUBS)
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án: Tơi TRP Tha Lớc
Thời gian họp: 19W 29/3/2018 Địa chỉ nơi họp: 18W TRUNG TRUNG Phuế
Dia chi noi hop: Hay TRuck The Phury
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Dại diện UBND xã (phường)
1) Nguyan Tri Ha Chức vụ: PCT LIBNA Phuy
1.1. Đại diện UBND xã (phường). Nguyễn Trị Hộ. Chức vụ: PUT UBN Phuế. 2). Nguyễn Đĩnh Chất Chức vụ: Chủ hiệ MITR.
1.2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
1)Chức vụ:
2)Chức vụ:
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
I). Nguyên Tuấn Anh Chức vụ: Chuyên gia
2). Binh Phi Huyen Chức vụ: Chuyen gia
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường), các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.1. Ông/Bà:
II.2. Ông/Bà: trình bày tóm tắt tác động môi trường của
dự án gồm các nội dung của dự án, các tác động tích cực và tiêu cực của dự án đến môi trường và sức khỏc cộng đồng, các biện pháp giảm thiểu.
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo tuận của cộng đồng dân cư 1, The flo Xugo Ngh / TPP Ha là )  Thuy What no các the Loi that i thou gua trib thư cag  (s which van the Matt and the face may than the variety.
co may his dais sold so tay att con chie may care now let by the

The State of

con photi this hits try any trig
+ ling Sti luy Thunh (TPP Hig Lot) Nhat An' the hips dy an ray Cap His Lot Dag New dy an thank eig thic has a san was than Anier 40 ha
+ ông Thườn văn Thái : (TPP Mài Lái)  L Nhất th' dự gin  - 8' tay nưi đư lư him 30 hiệ sắc xuất giá đứ cón lain đười để thi lay san xuất (khi ngày nưi)  thuẩn tiếts
thung ties.  + Eng Nguio Pri Ka: pa Whip phuz
- the philip philip their spiles may cap there his
(mg C) The the cut must do
- the ryling beam cais by TPP that Live typics truytes  Vain the receive dain chair has any true and phop hast  Ichin true the y' cai whe tring cay their dy air the  third hills:  + loc la dain som las what the dy air thire hills the
người dân đượi huy lư
S

b. Ý kiến phận hồi của chủ đầu tư — Thức hoện thoạn với Cỳ cũn sĩ lờ Ny, hợp tư	của chiết quyển độ phười ly name
hquir dân để sản H	ric hitin du an thi ciz 2019
***************************************	***************************************
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết	thúc cuộc họp
Những nội dung tán thành:	
	***************************************
	***************************************
Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng	ý (nếu có):
***************************************	
in a contract of the contract	
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của	이 그리아 이 이 이렇게 있는 사고 있다. 얼마 아이지 아니라 아이를 가게 하고 있다면 하는데 하다가 없다면 하다.
ion our case ask man can sold and can	
ết thúc lúc	***************************************
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho m	oi người cũng nghệ và thông qua y kiến.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường)lbj.lbis	ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
2.	
131	

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TỪ VÂN

Nguyên Gri Ha

### 6. Ngoc Son commune - Thach Ha district

USALD CỘNG HOẢ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc -----85)(23-----

### DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Kết thúc: A. h. a. ngày... ol b. tháng... 3... năm 2018 Địa điểm: Ngọc Soh - Shuyen Phoch.

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chí/chức vụ	Chữ kỷ	Ghi chú
1	Pham Hing Thouh	D0	7/4/	
v	Nguyen Van Ding	Nam Sin Mgoc Sin	Drugg	
3	Ngujen Church Virb	nt nt	That.	
4	Tian The Mush	nt -	Hins	
5	Trueng Kharh Dang		- 190 Mg	
6	Train Hair Riong	W	Thon	
7	Phan this Philip	b	Phylec	
2	Bus Price Til	(40)	Tis	
9	lê Xuan Ngyen	Y	Hanly	
10	Pham Nga Duynh	lı .	C. Just	
11	Bon Han Tuan	g.	Zugn	
12	le Xuan Pharo	٧	refe 2	- 1
13	Nguyễn thinh thức	9	lan	a de la companya de l
14	Nguyễn thủ Son	6	Son	
15	During thi Canh	9	. Caleb	
16	Nguen Dai Thanh	W	- Chail	
17	Horing Van Phirt	9	Chia	
18	Le Van lan	v	adul	
49	Ran Viet Phanh	li li	Want	
20	Phan Nga Minh	Å	Minh.	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	His Xuan Hubby	U	The	
22	Ho Xuan Hoang	h	Hoang	
23.	Nguyễn Đườn lợp	D.	Lan	
24	Nguiên Phai Quang	Ü	Quan	
25	le lan Phanh	li .	Thay	
	To the thirty		Huby	
27	le phi 70	11	TP	
	Alia Viet Quang	h	S& Us	
29	Turing Quoi floa	11	1 Ace	
30	Ngyển Phi trêp	1	Alep	
31	The Thi Having Nga	¥	-hgrs_	
	Myriger Occor Vecas	Clock UBNO	Recol	-
33	le thi thu thie	VP.	Mutou,	<
34	Nguyễn Van Hoà	Van phong The	Multer	
35	Ran Phi Thuy Van	Van Ron	La Dony	/
36	Ti Thi Haing Nga	CTOCH Hoi PN	au	
36	Main Thong Hong	Dig Chinh	1 mil	-
37 .	Pham Ruing An	P. Ctach LIBNO	Pur	
90.00	. 0		/	
- 8				

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghí chú
-				
		7		
_			-	
- 1				
			-	
-				

Ngày	năm	2018
	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY O	2010

Xác nhận của địa phương

Nguyễn Quốc Quân

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỢP THAM VẮN CỘNG ĐỒNG DẦN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: Di au sola chưa và naug cao au toạn đấp Hã T
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án: Và Mgac Sol
Thời gian họp: 45 30 - 17 h
Dia chi noi hop:
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Đại diện UBND xã (phường) Xã. Ngọc. Sh.
1) Aguyan Dubé Quan Chức vụ CT UBND 2) Than Thong Hong Chức vụ Địa Chính xã
1.2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
1)Chức vụ:
2)Chức vụ:
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
1) flown Son Tung Chức vụ: Chuyển Gia 2) Thinh Da Aly Chức vụ: Chuyển gia
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường). Với Ngư. San, các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.1. Ông/Bà:
II.2. Ông/Bà:
II.3. Tháo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bảy tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo luận của cộng đồng dân cư Tháng hao các sang que lạm đạp khi các tạo Mày cấp thai dap công xã trận xã là dhiệ cuố ho quan ly

....day. kulding den tou By (Men so) Milan do du duba. Ud dan usa...may Alling. ahar.... CHAM ach.... Man Olan aguica mang J.Gasta Men San Xua y toon Man Old TO OTT HULL Crig. Gua Julian Julian

b. Ý kiến phản hỗi của chủ đầu tư Se thuic luien wholng loca phap gram thiên to cta phuha tak ching sua TPA otos voi oth. Lung cua sac luo dan	
2 N-34 -1-3 4-5 1-6 1-61 41-4 6 - 1	
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết thúc cuộc họp	
- Những nội dung tán thành là dân Ahng sự Thực lives IDA	
<ul> <li>Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý (nếu có);</li> </ul>	
Third live don't con y men onthe dong? (new co).	
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Dự án: Sĩa chua tạo nâng Cac	,
kết thúc lúc	
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.	
1401 dung bien ban da duộc dọc lại cho một người cũng nghệ và mông qua ý kiến.	
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường)	
ON II.	
Nguyễn Quốc Quân	
ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VẪN	

#### 7. Son Le commune

# CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

# DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bắt đầu: J. h. 30. ngày. 30. tháng. 3... năm 2018 Kết thúc A. h. ngày. 3. tháng. 3... năm 2018 Địa điểm: Ưới Illay. UMA Xa Sa Le? ....

STT Họ và tên Dja chỉ/chức vụ Chữ ký Ghi chù R Namen Quang Main R 12 12 02 2 GIAP K de 10 Men R p Din Thi Things Soa 2 Sen R Frang R 12 20 Iche Co 1 69 n\_

	STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chủ
	21	Thai Vas Hoai	Myrstration chie	How	R
	22	My Chai Culty	blu Co-	Chief	R
	23	Ng my Er Thas Was		Tran	K
	28	Phan xua Pier	lake Co	Tien	L
	24	luy Plai Guytes	Khe Co-	45	R
	28	Phs xuax That	the to	Charl	K
	211	Hã Hoe Dung	the lo	Heldry	R
	248	thai As Hong	khe 6°	tlong	R
	289	Mayer The Trang	Khe Co-	Grang	R
30	29.	Nguyês Ties Dung	TPHT	1	R
	3031	Naugen rais Teins	Khe lo-	TRING	R
	3/32	- Phás Thas Idig	ulup.	Hiery	n
	323		Vans.	Dung.	e
	3839	That None Wai.	K606-	Hai	h
	35	Lucapirh Duge	The Co	Durie	n
	35	No Quang Nais	the to	Tuấn	R
	ðŦ.	Phan Van Phú	the co	Plus	R
	38	Tran Van Chair	the Co	Chan	R
	59	Nguyễn lbir Đông	Klie Co	Boros	
	40	Tean Kuan Vinh	the co	May	
	AX	lun Anh Hay	the Co	Dan	
	42	Phon Xuan Dung	Rhe Co	Darry	
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		0	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghí chú
			-	
			1	1
				0
11141				
		1		
9-9				i,
				Ac al
-				
				1
				4
				-

Ngày	tháng	näm 201

Xác nhận của địa phương

Nguyễn Quang Nam

-

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỌP THAM VÁN CỘNG ĐỒNG DÂN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: S.VÀ CH!VÀ VÀ NANG CAO AN TOAN ĐẬP.  KITE CO - THÔN LUTE CO - XÃ SƠN LÊ
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án: THỚN ICHE CO - XA SON LE
Thời gian họp: # 10 M Qu 30/3/2018
Dia chi noi hop: Hoi Juling Will Xa Son le
1. Thành phần tham dự
1.1. Đại diện UBND xã (phường)SCb. LE
1) Muyli Guang Nam Chức vụ PET URAD XA 2) Phân Xuân Tâm Chức vụ PLT HOND XA
1.2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
1)
2)
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:  1). Nghưylo Tuần And Chức vụ:
2)Chức vụ:
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp  II.1. Ông/Bà: AMM. XIAM. TAM. chủ tri cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp và giới thiệu thành phần tham dự.
II.2. Ông/Bà:
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo tuận của cộng đồng dân cư - bã con không số shoạt đồng thống mbi cấy thếng trước đấp và trong khuôn viên cuả đấp khe là - Thi đồng mối shưng đôi với dù ph như! - floan trần đồng tine chỉ du as "đạn bai đội sống

dan our cho ba un nhião dão gas đặp và Trong trac xố dam bas nguin nuite as the tall say dutter plane mae n'éc store trac train tie cao as new day it co so ho ah Se co duy teis lan wee life quas to by tac giai phry mat boing, set Tiling in the relace phai chuic ab con dury new bol xour do la con drey van vo du ac u se chái thu đi vao neu được đã bệ trong thủ phai có biểc Ní thoa thuận. Một qua leve thủ côp có, can villy mái hoà guas this so thea thurs bas Pu at : Vang guy lious : So Ithan ve vie, quy hoast on the "

b. Ý kiến phản hồi của chủ đầu tư	
	***************************************
	***************************************
nanananananananananananananananananana	
	***************************************
***************************************	***************************************
***************************************	
	***************************************
	***************************************
	***************************************
3. Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết t	húc cuộc họp
- Những nội dung tán thành: [V. Trib. donung hộ du' án 	., whot to vo chu
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
	***************************************
<ul> <li>Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý</li> </ul>	/ (nếu có):
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của L Cưwan. TvanstopkheCō	nrán: Silá Chuải Và roing - Thôn khu lã - Xá Sob LE .
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
kết thúc lúc	***************************************
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi	i người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiên.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường)	ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
100 g m1	

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VẮN

Spenje Tuan Boh

Asayen Quang Nam

### 8. Son Mai commune

NITTO

#### CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự đo – Hạnh phúc -----8008-----

### DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bất đầu: 14. h. 15. ngày. 30. tháng. 3... năm 2018 Kết thúc: 15. h. 15. ngày. 30. tháng. 3... nām 2018 Địa điểm: Toy. Hà. No. 16. Co. 18. 78. Sa. No.

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chi/chức vụ	Chữyký	Ghi chú
1	Nghiện Dương Hợp	PCT UBNO zá Sa Mai	2 A	
2	Nguyên Xuên Liêu	CT LIBMITA W SA NO	to lim	
3	Tiã. Đức Vượng	CT HE CCB YE SAMO	- XX	
4	-Doon Vind Original	BT - Down TN 20 Sh Mi	P-7	
5	Tran Ngư Louan	BT Chi his thin Mind Giang	Ugra3	
в	1 to Tarry Her	That things then Dins Lie	the.	
4	Nguyãn Dinh This	Câng dân thân Kinn Lâc	this	1
8	Nguyek The And	L.	Anh	
9	Nguyên ĐĩNg Tom	-	Tori	
do.	Phon - Druk Hoad	/1	Had	
11	Ha Von Hou	11	Huiting Way	2
12	Ha They Hoan	/.1	Have	
13	Nguyên Ngor Nghinh	11	notival	
14	Ha Trong Nga	11	VTE	
15	Ha Thon Tuyên	II.	Turker	
16	Phan Dink Those	11	Thomas	
R	Ha Thrip Cân	J1	Rich .	
18	Phan, Van. Tuy	11	due	
19	Phan Dink Kien	l1	tien	
20	Way Von Ven	That huly then Ha Sh	1.	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	From Duary High	BTOWER HE SA	al	
22	Nguyer The Oxy	BT chi bà Hàn lim lậc	ada	
23	Phon The Quy	Flor trudge than Ninh Giag	Qéy	
24	Thin Win Gry	PCT HIDND now Sin Mai	ML	
25	Nguyễn Đinh Hiểu	Câng dân-Hà Cin loz	List	
26	Pham Văn Đồng	11	B	
27	Nguyễn Ngọc Lĩnh	H .	linh	
28	Vary Van Leng	Cay chief OC-XD Tex Molec	- HA	
29	loth Mil	tim (or,	Lêr	
30	Hory The Than	11	Oten	
51	Trais Var west	Heil Gray	(Bms	
52	W? Van Tan	11	a sam	
33	Dow Un La	L1	W	
84	Flan Cy Har	t/	+has,	
1A	- 2		. 5 B	
			4	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
-			N 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	
- 10				
			15 - 15 - 15	
-				
				<u> </u>
-1				
-4				

......Ngày ......tháng......năm 2018

Xác nhận của địa phương

Nguyễn Dương Hợp

WTa

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỌP THAM VẤN CỘNG ĐỒNG DẦN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ẨN

ên dự án: DI án Sila Chủa và nàng cao an toan chập
lịa điểm thực hiện dự án: Xã Sận Mau
hời gian họp: 149 — 179 23/3 /2578 Dịa chỉ nơi họp: Xã Sơn Mui
Dia chi noi hop: Xã. Sơa Mai
. Thành phần tham dự
I. Đại diện UBND xã (phường)
) Nguyễn Dương thập Chức vụ P.CI LIBNIP xã tớp Mại
)Chức vụ:
2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
)Chức vụ:
)Chức vụ:
4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
4. Đại điện đơn vị tư vấn: ). Nguyên Tuốn Anh Chức vụ: ). Chức vụ:
)Chức vụ:
5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã phường) ���Mcu, các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề ghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường) ���
l. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
.1. Ông/Bà: Իրաբեւ Ուևիզ Իրիchủ trì cuộc họp thông báo lý do cuộc họp à giới thiệu thành phân tham dụ.
.2. Ông/Bà: Quyến
.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, ly ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
Ý kiến thảo tuận của cộng đồng dân cư trang Bảo nguồn nước cho ngữa chin canh true Norg trột - Về nghi ban quan lý chí án mà trong thea huyto đường chu binh cư giản rai hỏ đập



nong nuce nite that ha ha is ming toll rong raping a chan and most M quant sty can co giam LUT The Long i nang cap mikag, dils oban dap tien thi their targ rue lay nuise can co su phoi phoi chick ofugin dia phicing duyet mit whing van ote new mh thông , coe tong tanh gia o Man ra, lean gran ly can Trong quá trinh ten tri queen ly .awkng 19th out stag out land thout him sho ngits dan nou chula. can duce quan tam den en ducha Tham hooe dain he tháng her rang dell may thong. radtog. tills oti otom bad cho ngula not the va the nous

b. Ý kiến phản hồi của chủ đầu tư	
***************************************	
3. Người chữ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết t	húc cuộc họp
Những nội dụng tán thành:	
- Chush quyện địa phường Vớs Churh sách và cua dự a Xa Str. Mai	và rgut dan ung họ n sug shưa hã kho kế
Những nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng y	ý (něu có):
Biên bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của I Và năng cao an toán đấp Sốn Not - Tinh Hữ Tinh	Dy án: Dil án sửa chưa trí thổ the Re xa
cết thúc lúc	
Nội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọ	i người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.
ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường)Shi. Mưi	ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ
S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VẪN

Nguyễn Tican Ante

Nguyễn Dương Hợp

### 9. Son Tien commune

un.

### CỘNG HOÀ XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc -----8008-----

### DANH SÁCH ĐẠI DIỆN CÁC THÀNH VIÊN THAM GIA

Thời gian:

Bắt đầu:  $\mathcal{L}$ ... h...... ngày.  $\mathbb{Z}\mathbb{Q}$ ...tháng...  $\mathbb{Z}$ ..... năm 2018 Kết thúc://l. h. J.e. ngày. 3D. tháng. 3... năm 2018 Địa điểm: xối Soh Tiến - huyện Huồng Soh

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú	
1	thang Tiong Phú	then thing Son	Phil		
d	La Van Anh	11	of only		
3	Ngyển Thị then	Ti .	Etope		
4	Phan Van Hoa	Than Con Son	How		
5	Diong Thi Them	Than Hung Son	them		4
6	Nguyễn Thị Đi		. Din		1
4	Ngyễn Trong Để	ц	Độ		
8	Phan Kuan Hong	4	Hoy		_
9	Phon The Xuan	pha fr dia "	Ariu		
10	4 5	Thon Con Son	chau		_
11	During Manh Doan	el.	Dogo		4
12	Ngyễn Phanh Pan	ti	414		
13	Phan Hong Quan	ř.	Quein		
14	le being Horing	H.	Hoany.		
15	· U . / V	I thing Son	Chisn		
16	Duting Thank Hai	- Con Son	Hat		
17	Nguyễn Van Hiện	thing Son	Hich		
18	Tong Ran Vinh	Con Son	1.F		
19	than Van Thu	li .	7 hu		_
20	Nguyễn Von Phang	it	Than		

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ ký	Ghi chú
21	Dunh Van Hung	W	1 -	Hung
322		n	t-famz-	/
23	Nguyễn Tiến Hanh	Hung Son	July	
24	During Van Anh	v	Rhh	
25	Chan Van Ngư	tj	tobelle	
	Market Market Market	bottoan	Paus-	
	than the Heen	PRO CT LITTR	Alya	
28	Docum Phi Kum How		Jam	
29	than Thi Thuy		Mil	
30	Nguyễn Thi Thu then		all house	
	thering they their		01	
		CT the ND	mul 2	
35	Phan Quet Sang	Rushy CA.	San	,
7.4		Chi which HIXNN	Buce	
35		PRÓ CT. HEND	1 Thu	
36	9	Dia Church	142	
37	Aiting Thanh Han	Con Son	·Toh	
38	Phan Xian long	D	plan	
39	Phan Van Quoc	6+	au	
40	Phoen The Phie	ii .	My	
41	trong Minh High	thing son	Hul	6
4,2	Hoong Trong that	V <sub>II</sub>	Dat	
43	Ngyen Tier Phank	n .	Mul	
44	Nguyễn Van Thanh	M	Hal	
WIGHTON'	Dang Vain Son	4	Sm	
46	- Divong Van Pho	А	Din	

STT	Họ và tên	Địa chỉ/chức vụ	Chữ kỷ	Ghi chú
		-		
100				
_				
- 1				
-				
- 1				
		1		
_				
7				
8				
-1				
4			=	
- 7				

......Ngày ......tháng.....nām 2018

Xác nhận của địa phương

Hoàng Huy Hiệu

LUZALD

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập - Tự do - Hạnh phúc

# BIÊN BẢN HỌP THAM VẮN CỘNG ĐỒNG DÂN CƯ CHỊU TÁC ĐỘNG TRỰC TIẾP BỞI DỰ ÁN

Tên dự án: Dự an sựa chúa xã nang cao cun toan đạp MB
Tiple the righ
Địa điểm thực hiện dự án:xổScó โเลดี
Thời gian họp:
Dia chi noi họp:
1. Thành phần tham dự
I.I. Đại diện UBND xã (phường)
1) House they their Chircyn the Clirk USND
2)
1.2. Đại diện chủ dự án:
1)
2)
1.4. Đại diện đơn vị tư vấn:
1) Pham Son Tung Chức vụ: Chuyen gia
2). Thinki the Tea My Chức vụ: Chuyển gia
1.5. Đại biểu các thành phần tham dự: Đại diện của UBND, UBMTTQ xã (phường), các tổ chức chính trị - xã hội, tổ chức xã hội nghề nghiệp, tổ dân phố (có danh sách kèm theo) thuộc xã (phường)
II. Nội dung và diễn biến cuộc họp
II.1. Ông/Bà: - Hương Huy Hiệu
II.2. Ông/Bà: Lham. Son. Tung trình bày tóm tắt tác động môi trường của dự án gồm các nội dung của dự án, các tác động tích cực và tiêu cực của dự án đến môi trường và sức khỏc cộng đồng, các biện pháp giảm thiểu.
II.3. Thảo luận, trao đổi giữa cộng đồng dân cư chịu tác động trực tiếp với chủ dự án, Ủy ban nhân dân cấp phường về các vấn đề mà chủ dự án đã trình bày tại cuộc họp
a. Ý kiến thảo luận của cộng đồng dân cư Cong Trunh người có sư gram sát cấn đạm bảo chất lượng Gi gaing thủ sống Lam son vì đá xương cấp nghiệm trong

10/M . (CA) -

b. Ý	kiến phản hồi của chủ dầu tư
15	
3.5	
8	
6	
08	***************************************
0	
3	Người chủ trì cuộc họp tuyên bố kết thúc cuộc họp
- 10	1.6. 01.1. 02.1.1.1.
	ning noi dùng tan thành: Living y Ahui Rien, dù an
	hững nội dung còn có ý kiến chưa đồng ý (nếu có):
Riên	bản cuộc họp tham vấn cộng đồng của Dự án:
	our out hip man van our our our our our our
	húc lúc
11	ội dung biên bản đã được đọc lại cho mọi người cùng nghe và thông qua ý kiến.
	DAT DIÊM JIDAN JIDAKTEO

ĐẠI DIỆN UBND/UBMTTQ xã(phường)...Sm...liùs......

ĐẠI DIỆN CHỦ ĐẦU TƯ

Hoàng Huy Hiệu

ĐẠI DIỆN ĐƠN VỊ TƯ VÂN

ham Son They



# **Annex 3: Socio-Economic Survey of affected households**

# FORM 10. SOCIO-ECONOMIC SURVEY

Survey co	de://_	/_	; Date:	_//2018	
1. Full name of householders: =2				Gender: [ ] Male =1;	Female
2. Address: Village/hamlet: . Tinh province		Co	ommune	District	На
A. GENERAL INFORMATIO	ON OF HOUS	SEH	OLD		
A1. Number of family member? In which: Male:	_people, Fema	ale	people.		
A2. How many households are t	•				
A3. Number of working membe					
A4. Number of working children A5. Which types of household d			•		o
option)	oes your rann	ily oc	ciong to: (10a	can enoose more man on	C
1. Poor households (having poor	r certificate)		4. Ethnic min	ority households	
2. Near-poor households			5. Elderly households (1-2 members)		
3. Women-headed households w	ith/without		6. Households with Meritorious		
<u> </u>	dependants Services to the Revolution				
Respondent information:	13				
A6. Relationship with househo					
1. Husband/wife	2. Children			3. Grandchildren	
3. Father, mother	4. Grandfat	her/g	grandmother	5. Brother/Sister	
<b>A7. Gender:</b> 1. Male 2. Fema	ale				
<b>A8. Ethnic minority:</b> 1. Kinh	2. Others (spe	ecify)	)		
A9. Marital status					
1. Single	2. Marr	ried		3. Divorced	
4. Separated	5. Wide	owed		6. No answer	
A10. Educational level (with d	egree)				
0. Uneducated/Pre-school	1. Primary school 2. Secondary school				
3. High school	4. Vocationa	ıl trai	ning	5. College/University	
6. Don't know					
A11. What is your main job?					
1 Disable/Unemployed	2	Δor	i forestry agu	aculture	

3. Trading / Service 4. Civil servants/ Military	
5. Students	6. Handicraft
7. Worker	8 Housewife/Retired

### **B. ASSETS**

<b>B1.</b> l	Houses	(choose	only	one c	option)
--------------	--------	---------	------	-------	---------

- 1. Permanent (one-storey or more/ brick wall, reinforced concrete roof)
- 2. Semi-permanent (brick wall, tile / corrugated iron roof, ...)
- 3. Wooden house, leaf roof (wooden house, wood/leaf roof)
- 4. Temporary houses (bamboo, wooden, corrugated iron, ...)
- 5. No house
- 6. Others (apartment), specify:

### B2. Legal status of land use

### B2.1. Do you have LURCs for residential land?

1. Yes 2. No

### B2.2. Do you have LURCs for production land?

1. Yes 2. No

### B2.3. In case of LURCs, who is named for?

Subjects	Named for residential land	Named for agricultural land	Others
Husband			
Wife			
Both husband and wife			
Grandfather/grandmother			
Brother/Sister			
Others (specify)			

### **B3.** Which source of water do your family use? (Choose only one option)

Water sources	Water Cooking and drinking	Water Washing	Water Production
Natural rivers/ streams/ creek			
Reservoir/ Irrigation system			
Drilled/ Dug well			
Clean water supply system			
Storm water			
Bought water bottle (e.g. 20 litre bottle)			
Others (specify)			

### **B4.** Which type of toilets do you use? (Choose only one option)

1. No toilet

4. Temporary toilets (garden holes)

2. Septic/semi-septic tank

5. Toilets on pond, ditch, streams, etc.

3. Two-comp	partment tollet		6. Otners (specify):
<b>B5.</b> What is your main (Choose only one option	n type of power for lig	htir	ng?
<ol> <li>Kerosene</li> <li>Gas</li> </ol>	3. Grid electricity		<ul><li>4. Electricity from battery, generator, small hydropower</li><li>5. Others (specify)</li></ul>
B6. Which fuel do yo	ou use for cooking? (	Cho	ose only one option)
1. Wood/	Straw, leaves	4.	Biogas
2. Coal		5.	Electricity
3 Gas/Riogas		6	Others (specify):

**B7.** Out of following household equipment, which one do you have? (Enumerator: ask about each type of equipment)

Equipment	Yes	Equipment	Yes
1. Television		8. Car (excluding 'cong nong')	
2. Internet		9. Refrigerator	
3. Boat/ Motorboat		10. Air conditioner	
4. Motorbike/ Electric bike		11. Computer	
5. Telephone		12. Washing machine	
6. Mobile phone		13. Water heater	
7. Gas stove		14. Water filter	
		15. Others (specify):	

### C. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

# C1. How much is the total expenditure of your family last year? (thousand VND)

No.	Expenditure	Monthly
1	Daily spending (eating, drinking, electricity, calling, water,	
	travelling, etc.)	
2	Building, repairing houses	
3	Education	
4	Health care (medicine, health examination and treatment)	
5	Community spending (wedding, funeral, local contribution)	
6	Cost of production/family business	
7	Others, specify:	
	Total expenditure (thousand VND)	

### C2. How much is your family income from following sources within 12 recent months?

No	Income sources	Monthly income
1	Agricultural production (agriculture, livestock,	
	aquaculture, forest)	
2	Trading, business	
3	Handicraft	

4	Salary/ Wage						
5	Savings, deposit, gifts						
6	Allowance for households the Revolution	with Merito	orious Services	to			
7	Others						
	,	Total					
C3. 1	How is your household inco	me compar	ed to others in	n the area?	?		
	1. Rich	3. Poor					
	2. Average 4. Near-poor 5. No answer						
C4. 1	How do your living conditio	ns change	in 3 last years	?			
	1. Unchanged	2. Bette	r	3. V	Vorse		
		T C D C					
	CCESS TO SOCIAL SERV					2	
	What do you think about ch		ollowing issues				
No	Issue			Better	Unchanged	Worse	
1	Medical services/health care	2					
3	Education/school	1000					
4	Water supply for domestic u Water supply for production						
	Infrastructure (bridge, culve		chool				
5	medical units, etc.)						
6	1						
7	Natural disaster (storm, floo cold, etc.)	od, drought,	damaging				
8	Agricultural extension/assis	tance					
D2. \	Which activities did you and	d your fam	ily member do	last mont	h?		
No.	Activity	Daily	Regularly	Sometim	es Rarely	Never	
1	Read books, newspapers	•					
2	Watch TV						
3	Listen to radio						
4	Travel						
5	Visit temple/ church						
6 7	Participate in festival						
/	Others (specify)						
D3. /	Are there any members goin	l 19 to schoo	⊥ l in vour fami	lv?	L		
<b>D</b> 3. 1	1. Yes	ig to seniou	2. No	·y•			
<b>D4.</b> A	Are there any children from	15 to 17 yes	ars not going	to school ii	n your family?		
	1. Yes		2. No <b>→ Move</b>				
<b>D5.</b> 1	How many children do not g	going to scl	-	mily?	, i	n which:	
DC 1	Boy:	- oan obsess	Girl:	a antiam)			
DO. ]	Reasons for dropout? (You o	van cnoose	more tnan one		For girls		
	For boys	1		ror guas			

1.	Financial struggle	1.	Financial struggle
2.	To participate in production	2.	To participate in production
	activities		activities
3.	Not willing to study	3.	Not willing to study
4.	Poor results/Failed	4.	Poor results/Failed
5.	Far from school/ Difficult to travel	5.	Far from school/ Difficult to travel
6.	High education is unnecessary for	6.	High education is unnecessary for
	girls		girls
7.	Others (specify)	7.	Others (specify)

### D7. Is there any illness of your family members in 12 last months?

1. Yes

2. No  $\rightarrow$  Move to D10

D8. If yes, which illness is it?

1. Cold/Flu	5.Cholera/dysentery, diarrhea
2. Respiratory	6.Liver
3. Malaria	7.Food poisoning/Poisoned
4. Dengue	8.Accident injury
	9. Others (specify)

### D9. Where did the family go for health examination and treatment (in the latest time)?

<b>_</b>	
1. Commune health station	2. District hospital
3. Provincial hospital	4. Central hospital
5. Clinics	6. Self-medication

D10. Do you think what brings negative affects to local health?

<u> </u>	
1. Unsafe food, vegetables	4. Air pollution/Noise
2. Water pollution	5. Diseases
3. Water stagnancy	6. Water shortage
	7. Others (specify)

# D11. Does your family participate in health insurance (health insurance, social insurance, AIA, Chathay, etc.)?

	•	_	_	

1. Yes 2. No

D	12.	. If	ves.	how	many	peor	ole are	partici	pating	in?	peo	ple/	/	pe	op	le

### E. PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

### E1. Describe some details about your production land?

	Residential area (m2)	Garden/land for perennial trees (m2)	Agricultural land (ha)	Aquaculture land (ha)	Salt farms (ha)	Forest land (ha)
Area						

# E2. What is your production and business plan in next 2 or 3 years? (You can choose more than one option)

- 1. Maintain current activities
- 2. Expand current activities
- 3. Narrow current activities
- 4. Stop production and business
- 5. Change production and business method
- 6. No plan

# E3. Do you have any loans?

1. Yes,	Amount:	thousand	VND	$\rightarrow$ Move to E4
<b>-</b>				

2. No **→***Move to E6* 

### **E4. What is the loan used for**? (You may choose more than one option)

1. Agricultural production	8. Business/Service
2. Husbandry	9. Healthcare and treatment
3. Aquaculture	10. Education
4. Forestry farming	11. Production land purchase
5. Handicraft	12. Residential land purchase
6. Durable goods purchase	13. House building, repair
7. Daily spending	14. Others (specify):

# E5. Who do you borrow from?

No.	Loan sources Options				
1	Relatives, neighbours, friends				
2	Moneylenders				
3	People's credit fund, credit cooperatives				
4	Agriculture and Rural Development Bank				
5	Bank for Social Policies for the poor				
6	Other banks				
7	Development programs (employment program 120, etc.)				
8	Fund for Hunger eradication and Poverty alleviation.				
9	Women's Union, other mass organizations				
10	Others (specify):				

# **E6.** Which material/spiritual support do you think of at first if needed? (Choose only three options)

Material	Spiritual
1. Parents	1. Parents
2. Brothers/Sisters	2. Brothers/Sisters

3. Children	3. Children
4. Relatives	4. Relatives
5. Neighbours	5. Neighbours
6. Friends	6. Friends
7. Local governments, mass organizations	7. Local governments, mass organizations
8. None	8. None
9. Others (specify):	9. Others (specify):

# **E7.** At present, which support do you need from the project or the government? (Choose maximum 5 important demands to your family)

No.	Supports	
1	Fund for production (preferential interest rate)	
2	Fund for land use change if applicable	
3	Fund for house building, repair	
4	Employment training	
5	Agricultural extension, production training	
6	Children's education cost	
7	Medical insurance for people with chronic illness, elderly people and children over 6 years old	
8	Safe water cost (well drilling, tap water)	
9	Toilets cost	
10	Electricity grid connection cost	
11	No demand	
12	Others (specify)	

# E8. If you are affected by the project, what will you use your compensation and assistance for? (Choose suitable options)

1	Production land purchase	8	Loan payment
2	Residential land purchase	9	Daily spending
3	Building new house/Repair, upgrade house	10	Expensive furniture purchase
4	Investment in business, services, non-agricultural production	11	Health treatment
5	Agricultural, forestry, aquaculture	12	Children's education

	production		
6	Vocational training (non-agriculture)	13	Distribution to children and relatives
7	Bank deposit	14	Others (specify)

#### G. PROJECT-RELATED ISSUES

### G1. Do you know that the dam rehabilitation project will be implemented in your area?

- 1. Yes (Name or description:.....)
- 2. No Move to G3

### G2. If yes, from which source do you know about it? (You may circle more than one option)

- 1. Village meetings
- 2. Commune meetings
- 3. Television, radio, newspapers
- 4. Communal speakers
- 5. Officers of local authorities, mass organizations
- 6. Staff of PMU/Project Owner
- 7. Consultants
- 8. Husband/wife
- 9. Relatives
- 10. Friends/neighbours
- 11. Others (specify):....

#### G3. In your opinion, what are positive consequences of the project if implemented?

- 1. Improved water supply for domestic uses and production
- 2. Enhanced production conditions, productivity of plants and animals
- 3. More jobs, higher income from agricultural production
- 4. Reduced risks to safety of local people in downstream areas
- 5. Reduced risks to production safety in downstream areas
- 6. Reduced environmental pollution
- 7. Improved travelling conditions among production and residential areas
- 8. Reduced environmental pollution
- 9. Developed non-agricultural activities (trade, services, tourism, etc.)
- 10. More jobs for local people during construction
- 11. Others (specify.....)

### G4. In your opinion, what are negative impacts of the project implementation?

- 1. Environmental pollution (soil, water, air)
- 2. Noise
- 3. Flooding/drought (Higher flooding risk in upstream areas when reservoirs collect water and increased safety risk in downstream areas in the course of water releasing)
- 4. Social evils (gambling, drugs, prostitution, etc.)
- 5. Infectious diseases (HIV/AIDS, sexually transmitted diseases, etc.)

- 6. Affected cultural, spiritual activities, social interactions
- 7. Interrupted water supply during dam rehabilitation
- 8. Decreased income due to affected production/business
- 9. Affected goods transportation
- 10. Affected local travelling
- 11. Increased conflicts in water use among local households
- 12. Loss/shortage of jobs
- 13. Relocation and resettlement for local people
- 14. Loss of production land
- 15. Affected cultural heritage, public works
- 16. Child labor
- 17. Others (specify):.....

### G5. According to you, what should be done in order to minimize those negative impacts?

- 1. Different communication methods to raise awareness among the community, staff, workers on HIV/AIDS, STDs and social evils
- 2. Training programs on HIV/AIDS, STDs and social evils prevention and control for officers, workers of construction contractors should be carried out.
- 3. People's awareness of project's benefits should be enhanced through communication
- 4. Impacts on travelling, noise, stagnancy, etc. should be minimized by the construction contractors
- 5. There should be monitoring agency to ensure that construction activities do not affect livelihood of local people.
- 6. Representatives of village heads, local people should be allowed to supervise construction activities
- 7. Minimize the number of affected households by the project
- 8. Subproject construction should be quick and in good quality.
- 9. Local people should be informed of when subproject items may temporarily affect remaining land of local people
- 10. During construction, if any impacts on land, crops, etc. of local households arise, AHs should be timely compensated and assisted.
- 11. Local labors should be hired for construction activities.

12. Others	(specify)_	

### **G6.** Do you support this project?

- 1. Yes
- 2. No Why?.....
- 3. Other comments.....

# H. INFECTIOUS DISEASSES, SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASES (STDs) and HIV/AIDS

#### H1. What is HIV?

1. Harmful bacteria	2Mycosis	
3. Human immunodeficiency virus	4Don't know	

H2. Do you think that HIV/AIDS can be healed?  1. Yes 2.No 3. Don't know			
H3. Can you name some sexually transmitted disea	15059		
1. Gonorrhea 2. Syphilis	3.Vaginal ye	act	
4. Penile discharge 5. Others (specify		ası	
H4. How do you know about STDs/HIV/AIDS? (Ci			
1. News/radio/ Internet			
3. TV	2Meetings		
5. Local medical units	4Others (specify)		
H5. How is STDs/HIV/AIDS transmitted? (Circle a	i suitable answers)		
1. Drug injection or share syringes with others			
2. Use common bowls with HIV infected persons			
3. Bit by insects or mosquitoes			
4. Have sex without using condom			
5. Mother-to-child transmission			
6. Others (specify)			
H6. How can STDs/HIV/AIDS be prevented? (Circ	de a suitable answers)		
1. Be married to one person at a time			
2. Be separated from HIV/AIDS infected people			
3. Have sex with using condom			
4. Use separate injection syringes in all cases			
5. Not shaking hand with infected people			
6. Not using bowl and chopsticks used by infected	l people		
7. Others (specify)			
H7. What is the most effective communication way	to provide community h	ealth	
information to local people?			
1. Leaflets			
2. Panel/Poster/Graphic			
3. News/radio/ Internet			
4. TV			
5. Meetings			
6. Others (specify)			
I. GENDER ISSUES			
1. How are your family activities distributed?	(Choose only one option)		
Contents	Male	Female	Both
Income generating activities			
Children care and education			
Household chores (cleaning, cooking, decorating, sma	ıll purchase)		
Commune meetings			

# 2. How is the time for following activities by gender? (Choose only one option)

Village meetings

Production activities	More for men	More for women	Similar
	than women	than men	

Farming (rice, cash crops)			
Husbandry			
Planting/ caring/ protecting forests			
Exploiting forestry products			
Aquaculture			
Being workers/doing hired jobs			
Doing business			
Working far away			
Income generating activities			
Family activities	More for men than women	More for women than men	Similar
Children caring/education			
House cleaning			
Cooking/Houseworks			
Community activities.	More for men than women	More for women than men	Similar
Participating in community meetings			
Participating in training in production			
Participating in socio-politic activities			
Decision making	More for men than women	More for women than men	Similar
Significant spending in the family			
Giving birth/number or gender of children			
Children education, employment			
Investment, production activities			

Thanks for your cooperation!

# Annex 4: Minutes of public consultation in project wards/communes



Public consultation in Son Tien commune-Ky Anh

Public consultation in Ngoc Son commune-Ky Anh



Public consultation in Huong Tho commune-Ky Anh



Public consultation in Ky Bac commune-Ky Anh



Public consultation in Son Tien commune-Huong Son



Public consultation in Ky Phong commune-Ky Anh



Public consultation in Ky Trinh ward



Public consultation in Son Le commune-Ky Anh

#### **Annex 5:: Public information Booklet**

#### Introduction:

The Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project (DRaSIP), Ha Tinh subproject (hereinafter referred to as the Subproject),

The RAP is prepared based on the project's resettlement framework, inventory of loss, public conssultation in March 2018. The report consists of the subproject's impacts on land acquistion; eligible criteria and conditions of compensation for land and affected assets; implementation arrangement, implementation plan, cost estimate

### Specific objectives of the Project include

- (i) Repair and improve dam safety to ensure the reservoir's adaptability to climate change;
- (ii) Ensure water supply for traditional farming areas;
- (iii) Ensure active irrigation for increase of number of crops from 1 to 2 in paddy fields to promote agricultural production

### The Components.

The Dam Rehabilitation and Safety Improvement Project (DRaSIP), Ha Tinh subproject 3 include Components as follows:

# Component 1: Dam Safety Rehabilitation (USD 385 million)

The activities include: (i) detailed design, safeguards policies documents, monitoring and quality control of rehabilitation works and associated safeguards compliance for prioritized dams and associated infrastructure; (ii) rehabilitation works, including civil works, hydro-mechanical works and installation of hydrological and safety

coordination mechanism including national dam policy on registration, regulation, inspection, safety compliance and penalties; (iv) technical specifications, safety standards and regulations to internationally-accepted levels; and (v) capacity enhancement, basinwide integrated dam reservoir operation plans, emergency preparedness plan including dam break

# Component 3: Project Management Support (USD 15 million)

This component will provide favourable conditions for project implementation with support of: (i) Coordination of Project Steering Committee, including MARD, MoIT and MoNRE in all project interventions; (ii) Provision of Project Management Unit (PMU) within MARD with necessary support services for timely and effective project implementation, including monitoring & evaluation, procurement, financial management, safeguard monitoring, etc.; (iii) **Technical** Assistance for beneficiary departments within MoIT and MoNRE to provide necessary support services for timely and effective project implementation; (iv) Establishment and operation of a National Dam Safety Review Panel; (v) Independent audits of prioritized dams before and after rehabilitation; and (vi) Incremental operating costs for project related activities

### Who are the affected households (AHs)?

Entitled AHs are those persons who are located within the affected area at the date the project will be publicly announced. The cut-off-date for eligibility is the date of the notification for land acquisition. Persons who

monitoring equipment and devices; (iii) preparation of Operation and Maintenance Plans, and Emergency Preparedness Plans; (iv) approval of check list on standards of dam management by the community

# **Component 2: Dam Safety Management and Planning (USD 60 million)**

This would include provision of support to: (i) hydrological observation network and information systems; (ii) integrated development planning and operational coordination mechanisms between irrigation and hydropower reservoirs; (iii) regulatory and institutional support and strengthening on

- d) Preparation of resettlement plans and their implementation is to be carried out with participation and consultation of affected people
- e) Payment of compensation for affected assets and relocation of AHs to new sites will be completed prior to commencement of any construction activities.
- f) Specific assistance will be provided for ethnic minorities, female headed-households, families with disabled, and other vulnerable families.

# When the Detailed Measurement Survey (DMS) will take place?

The DMS will only be carried out in the presence of the AHs. AHs will be informed prior to the survey.

### When other consultation will take place?

Consultation with AHs will continue during the detailed design phase and before the DMS. AHs will receive a written invitation to join the public meetings. encroach into the area after the cut-off-date will not be entitled to compensation or any other form of resettlement assistance.

# What are the resettlement policies and principles of the Project for affected households?

The basic resettlement principles of the Project are:

- a) All APs are entitled to be compensated for their lost assets, incomes and businesses at replacement cost, and provided with rehabilitation measures sufficient to assist them to improve or at least maintain their preproject living standards, incomes and productive capacity.
- b) Lack of legal rights to the assets lost will not prevent APs from entitlement to compensation.
- c) Compensation for affected assets shall be provided at market rates.

The complaint can be filed first at the commune level and can be elevated to the highest provincial level if the AHs are not satisfied with the decisions made by the commune or district. AHs will be exempted from all taxes and administrative and legal fees associated with filing and resolving the dispute.

Anybody who has questions or concerns about the Project, can contact the following persons:

HA TINH PROJECT MANAGENMENT UNIT OF CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT WORKS FOR AGRICULTURE AND RUNAL DEVELOPMENT If there are disagreements or problems arising during the Project such as compensation or general project-related disputes, do I have the right to complain?

Any AH may file a complaint or grievance. The Project includes a Grievance Redress Process and AHs may present their complaints to the concerned local administrative officials and RCs, either verbally or in writing